
City of Grand Island

Tuesday, May 25, 2010

Council Session Packet

City Council: Mayor:
Margaret Hornady

City Administrator:
Jeff Pederson

City Clerk:
RaNae Edwards

T
u

7:00:00 PM
Council Chambers - City Hall

100 East First Street

Larry Carney
Scott Dugan
John Gericke
Peg Gilbert
Chuck Haase
Robert Meyer
Mitchell Nickerson
Bob Niemann
Kirk Ramsey
Jose Zapata

City of Grand Island City Council



A - SUBMITTAL OF REQUESTS FOR FUTURE ITEMS
Individuals who have appropriate items for City Council consideration should complete the Request for Future Agenda 
Items form located at the Information Booth. If the issue can be handled administratively without Council action, 
notification will be provided. If the item is scheduled for a meeting or study session, notification of the date will be given.

B - RESERVE TIME TO SPEAK ON AGENDA ITEMS
This is an opportunity for individuals wishing to provide input on any of tonight's agenda items to reserve time to speak. 
Please come forward, state your name and address, and the Agenda topic on which you will be speaking.

MAYOR COMMUNICATION
This is an opportunity for the Mayor to comment on current events, activities, and issues of interest to the community.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

This is an open meeting of the Grand Island City Council. The City of Grand Island abides by the Open Meetings Act 
in conducting business. A copy of the Open Meetings Act is displayed in the back of this room as required by state 
law.

The City Council may vote to go into Closed Session on any agenda item as allowed by state law.

City of Grand Island City Council



Item C1
Recognition of Patrick Karr, Power Plant Materials Handler with 
the Utilities Department for 20 Years of Service with the City of 
Grand Island
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Patrick Karr, Power Plant Materials Handler 
with the Utilities Department for 20 Years of Service with the City of Grand Island. Mr. Karr 
was hired on May 21, 1990 as a Materials Handler at the Power Plant and has held that 
position for 20 years.. We congratulate Mr. Karr for his dedication and service to the City of 
Grand Island.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Hornady

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C2
Recognition of Steven Mettenbrink, Power Plant Instrument 
Technician with the Utilities Department for 30 Years of Service 
with the City of Grand Island
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Steven Mettenbrink, Power Plant Instrument 
Technician with the Utilities Department for 30 Years of Service with the City of Grand 
Island. Mr. Mettenbrink was hired on May 19, 1980 as a Power Plant Operator I, was 
promoted to power Plant Control Operator I on February 7, 1982; Power Plant Operator on 
May 22, 19088; and to his current position of Instrument Technician on October 11, 1999. 
We congratulate Mr. Mettenbrink for his dedication and service to the City of Grand Island.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Hornady

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C3
Recognition of Bradley Titman, Wastewater Plant Process 
Supervisor with the Public Works Department for 25 Years of 
Service with the City of Grand Island
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Bradley Titman, Wastewater Plant Process 
Supervisor with the Public Works Department  for 25 Years of Service with the City of Grand 
Island. Mr. Titman was hired on May 20, 1985 as a Power Plant Operator I at the Water 
Pollution Control Plant, was promoted to Plant Operator II on August 5, 1985; Lab 
Technician II on August 28, 1989; Plant Operator Chief III on June 2, 1991; and to his 
current position of Wastewater Plant Process Supervisor on April 1, 1992. We congratulate 
Mr. Titman for his dedication and service to the City of Grand Island.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Hornady

City of Grand Island City Council





Item C4
Presentation of Application for Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) 2010
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Lamken

City of Grand Island City Council



Presentation 
 
From:   Chief Steven Lamken, Police Department 
 
Meeting:   May 25, 2010 
 
Subject:  Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 

2010 
 
Item #:  C-4 
 
Presenter(s):  Steve Lamken, Chief of Police 
 
 

Background 
 

The Grand Island Police Department and Hall County Sheriff’s Department are eligible 
to receive Justice Assistance Grant money from the U.S. Department of Justice under the 
JAG offering in 2010. The total award for Grand Island is in the amount of $31,494.00 
and may be spent over a four year period. The Grand Island Police Department will serve 
as the fiscal agency on this grant. The Hall County Sheriff’s Department will be a 
disparate agency and will receive twenty five percent of the award totals, $7,873.00 with 
the remaining seventy five percent, $23,621.00 to the City of Grand Island. 
 

Discussion 
 

 
There is a requirement that the applicant agency (Grand Island Police Department) make 
the grant application available for review by the governing body not less than 30 days 
before application. Application deadline is June 30, 2010 
 
There is a federal mandate that requires a public hearing regarding the application 
process and disbursement of the JAG funds. This hearing will take place on June 8, 2010 
 
The grant requires an MOU between the applicant (Grand Island) and any disparate 
agencies (Hall County).  By definition, Hall County is a disparate agency eligible for 
funds. The MOU will be on the City Council and the Hall County Board’s agenda on 
June 8, 2010. 



Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 
 

CFDA NUMBER:  16.738 
                                                                            
                                                                                          
THE STATE OF NEBRASKA 
 
COUNTY OF HALL 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA 

AND COUNTY OF HALL, NEBRASKA 
 

2010 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM AWARD 
 

This agreement is made and entered into this 8th day of June, 2010, by and between The 
County of Hall, acting by and through its governing body, The Hall County Board of 
Supervisors, hereinafter referred to as COUNTY, and the CITY of Grand Island, acting 
by and through its governing body, the City Council, hereinafter referred to as CITY, 
both of Hall County, State of Nebraska, witnesseth: 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and County may apply for a direct award from the Justice 
Assistance Grant Program of $31,494.00 and the City shall act as fiscal agent for this 
award and file the joint application on behalf of the City and County: and  
 
 WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing governmental functions or in paying 
for the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or 
those payments from current revenues legally available to that party: and  
 
 WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this agreement is in the 
best interests of both parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the 
division of costs fairly compensates the performing party for the services or functions 
under this agreement: and  
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY agrees to provide the COUNTY $7,873.00 from the $31,494.00 
JAG award: and 
 
 WHERAS, the CITY and COUNTY believe it to be in their best interests to reallocate 
the JAG funds. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the COUNTY and City agree as follows: 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 



 
Section 1. 

 
 
CITY agrees to pay COUNTY a total of $7,873.00 of JAG funds. 
 

 
CFDA NUMBER:  16.738 
 

 
Section 2. 

 
COUNTY agrees to use the $7,873.00 JAG funds by 9-30-2014. 
 

Section 3. 
 

Each party to this agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing services 
under this agreement and shall not be liable for any civil liability that may arise from the 
furnishing of the services by the other party.  
 
 
CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA                COUNTY OF HALL, NEBRASKA 
 
 
_______________________________                       _____________________________ 
Mayor                                                                           Board Chairperson 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________                       _____________________________ 
City Clerk                                                                     County Clerk 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2 



Item E1
Public Hearing on Request from Ronald King dba RK’s Pub, 217 
E. Stolley Park Road #6 & #7 for a Change of Location to 217 E. 
Stolley Park Road Suite N for Class “C-59418” Liquor License
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Public Hearing on Request from Ronald King dba RK’s 

Pub, 217 E. Stolley Park Road #6 & #7 for a Change of 
Location for Class “C-59418” Liquor License to 217 E. 
Stolley Park Road Suite N 

 
Item #’s:  E-1 & I-1 
 
Presenter(s): RaNae Edwards, City Clerk  
 
 

Background 
 
Ronald King dba RK’s Publ, 217 E. Stolley Park Road #6 & #7 has submitted an 
application for a Change of Location for their Class “C-59418” Liquor License to 217 E. 
Stolley Park Road Suite N. 
 

Discussion 
 

City Council action is required and forwarded to the Nebraska Liquor Control 
Commission for issuance of all licenses. This application has been reviewed by the Clerk, 
Building, Fire, Health, and Police Departments. Attached is the Police Department’s 
background investigation and recommendation.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Approve the application. 
2. Forward to the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission with no 

recommendation.  
3. Forward to the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission with recommendations. 
4. Deny the application.  

 



Recommendation 
 
Based on the Nebraska Liquor Control Commission’s criteria for the approval of Liquor 
Licenses, City Administration recommends that the Council approve the application.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the application for a change of location requested by Ronald King dba 
RK’s Pub from 217 E. Stolley Park Road #6 & #7 to 217 E. Stolley Park Road Suite N 
for the Class “C-59418” Liquor License contingent upon final inspections. 



Item E2
Public Hearing on Redevelopment Plan for Real Estate Located 
between 107 and 203 East Stolley Park Road
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Chad Nabity, AICP 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Amendment to Redevelopment Plan for CRA Area #2 
 
Item #’s:  E-2 & G-3 
 
Presenter(s): Chad Nabity, AICP  CRA Director 
 
 

Background  
 

 
In September of 1999, the Grand Island City Council declared property referred to as 
CRA Area #2 as blighted and substandard and approved a generalized redevelopment 
plan for the property. The generalized redevelopment plan authorized the use of Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) for the acquisition of property, redevelopment of property, 
site preparation, landscaping and parking.. TIF can also be used for improvements to and 
expansion of existing infrastructure including but not limited to: streets, water, sewer, 
drainage. 
 
Ken-Ray LLC (the developer) has submitted a proposed amendment to the 
redevelopment plan that would provide for the construction a 17,500 square foot 
commercial retail/office building on property at the southeast corner of Stolley Park Road 
and South Locust Street. 
 
The CRA reviewed the proposed development plan and forwarded it to the Hall County 
Regional Planning Commission for recommendation at their meeting on May 5th. The 
CRA also sent notification to the City Clerk of their intent to enter into a redevelopment 
contract for this project pending Council approval of the plan amendment. 
 
The Hall County Regional Planning Commission held a public hearing on the plan 
amendment at a meeting on December 2nd.  The Planning Commission approved 
Resolution 2010-04 in support of the proposed amendment, declaring the proposed 
amendment to be consistent with the Comprehensive Development Plan for the City of 
Grand Island. 
 



Discussion 
 

Tonight, Council will hold a public hearing to take testimony on the proposed plan 
amendment (including the cost benefit analysis that was performed regarding this 
proposed project) and to enter into the record a copy of the plan amendment, the draft 
TIF contract under consideration by the CRA.  
 
Council is being asked to approve a resolution approving the cost benefit analysis as 
presented along with the amended redevelopment plan for CRA Area #2 and authorizes 
the CRA to execute a contract for TIF based on the plan amendment. The redevelopment 
plan for amendment permits the development of a 17, 500 square foot commercial retail 
office building at this site and the use of Tax Increment Financing to pay for the cost of 
acquisition of the property, and site preparation and necessary utility improvements. The 
developer has indicated that depending on market conditions that they would consider 
building up to 12,500 additional square feet of space at this location. The additional 
investment if made would shorten the payback period for the TIF as presented. The cost 
benefit analysis as attached finds that this project meets the statutory requirements for as 
eligible TIF project and that it will not negatively impact existing services within the 
community or shift additional costs onto the current residents of Grand Island and the 
impacted school districts. The total tax increment financing allowed for this project may 
not exceed $324,350 during this 15 year period.   
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve the resolution 
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
The CRA and Hall County Regional Planning Commission recommend that the Council 
approve the Resolution necessary for the adoption and implementation of this plan.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the resolution as submitted. 



Redevelopment Plan Amendment 
Grand Island CRA Area #2  

April 2010 
 

The Community Redevelopment Authority (CRA) of the City of Grand Island 
intends to amend the Redevelopment Plan for Area #2 with in the city, pursuant to 
the Nebraska Community Development Law (the “Act”) and provide for the 
financing of a specific infrastructure related project in Area #2. 
 
Executive Summary: 
Project Description 
 
THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY AT STOLLEY PARK ROAD AND SOUTH 
LOCUST STREET BY THE DEVELOPER AND SUBSEQUENT UTILITY 
IMPROVEMENTS, LANDSCAPING AND PARKING IMPROVEMENTS 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A 
COMMERCIAL/OFFICE CENTER THIS LOCATION.   
 
The use of Tax Increment Financing to aid in the acquisition and utility improvements of 
the property makes it feasible for the proposed development.  
 
The acquisition and site work will be paid for by the developer.  The developer is 
responsible for and has provided evidence that they can secure adequate debt financing to 
cover the costs associated with the acquisition and site work. The Grand Island 
Community Redevelopment Authority (CRA) intends to pledge the ad valorem taxes 
generated over the 15 year period beginning January 1, 2011 towards the allowable costs 
and associated financing for the acquisition and site work. 
 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING TO PAY FOR THE ACQUISTION OF THE 
PROPERTY AND RELATED SITE WORK WILL COME FROM THE 
FOLLOWING REAL PROPERTY: 
Property Description (the “Redevelopment Project Area”) 
 
This property is located at the southeast corner of Stolley Park Road and South Locust 
Street in southeast Grand Island including: 

• Lots 4 and 5 of Equestrian Meadows Subdivision.  
 

The tax increment will be captured for the tax years the payments for which become 
delinquent in years 2012 through 2025, inclusive. 
 
The real property ad valorem taxes on the current valuation will continue to be paid 
to the normal taxing entities.  The increase will come from the Commercial/Office 
center to be constructed on the property to be acquired.  
 
 
 



Statutory Pledge of Taxes. 
Pursuant to Section 18-2147 of the Act, any ad valorem tax levied upon real property in 
the Redevelopment Project Area shall be divided, for the period not to exceed 15 years 
after the effective date of the provision, which effective date shall be January 1, 2011. 
 

a. That portion of the ad valorem tax which is produced by levy at the rate 
fixed each year by or for each public body upon the redevelopment project valuation shall 
be paid into the funds, of each such public body in the same proportion as all other taxes 
collected by or for the bodies; and  
 

b. That portion of the ad valorem tax on real property in the 
redevelopment project in excess of such amount, if any, shall be allocated to and, when 
collected, paid into a special fund of the Authority to pay the principal of; the interest on, 
and any premiums due in connection with the bonds, loans, notes, or advances on money 
to, or indebtedness incurred by, whether funded, refunded, assumed, or otherwise, such 
Authority for financing or refinancing, in who le or in part, a redevelopment project. 
When such bonds, loans, notes, advances of money, or indebtedness including interest 
and premium due have been paid, the Authority shall so notify the County Assessor and 
County Treasurer and all ad valorem taxes upon real property in such redevelopment 
project shall be paid into the funds of the respective public bodies. 

 
Pursuant to Section 18-2150 of the Act, the ad valorem tax so divided is hereby pledged 
to the repayment of loans or advances of money, or the incurring of any indebtedness, 
whether funded, refunded, assumed, or otherwise, by the CRA to finance or refinance, in 
whole or in part, the redevelopment project, including the payment of the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on such bonds, loans, notes, advances, or indebtedness. 
 
 
 
 



Redevelopment Plan Amendment Complies with the Act: 
 
The Community Development Law requires that a Redevelopment Plan and Project 
consider and comply with a number of requirements.  This Plan Amendment meets the 
statutory qualifications as set forth below.  
 
1.  The Redevelopment Project Area has been declared blighted and substandard by 
action of the Grand Island City Council on September 19, 1999.[§18-2109]  Such 
declaration was made after a public hearing with full compliance with the public 
notice requirements of §18-2115 of the Act. 
 
2.  Conformation to the General Plan for the Municipality as a whole. [§18-2103 (13) 
(a) and §18-2110] 
 
Grand Island adopted a Comprehensive Plan on July 13, 2004.  This redevelopment plan 
amendment and project are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, in that no changes in 
the Comprehensive Plan elements are intended.  This plan merely provides funding for 
the developer to acquire the necessary property and provide the necessary site work for 
the construction of a permitted use on this property.  
 
3.  The Redevelopment Plan must be sufficiently complete to address the following 
items: [§18-2103(13) (b)] 
 
a. Land Acquisition:  
 
The Redevelopment Plan for Area #2 provides for real property acquisition and this plan 
amendment does not prohibit such acquisition.  
 
b. Demolition and Removal of Structures:  
 
The project to be implemented with this plan does not intend that any structures be 
removed or demolished.  This amendment does not prohibit demolition elsewhere in the 
Redevelopment Project Area.  
 
c. Future Land Use Plan 
 
See the attached map from the 2004 Grand Island Comprehensive Plan.  The site is 
planned for commercial development. [§18-2103(b) and §18-2111]  The attached map 
also is an accurate site plan of the area after redevelopment. [§18-2111(5)] 
 
d. Changes to zoning, street layouts and grades or building codes or ordinances or 
other Planning changes. 
 
The area is zoned B2- General Business zone with an AC-Arterial Commercial Overlay. 
Commercial development is anticipated based on this project.  No changes are anticipated 



in street layouts or grades.  No changes are anticipated in building codes or ordinances.  
Nor are any other planning changes contemplated. [§18-2103(b) and §18-2111] 
 
e. Site Coverage and Intensity of Use 
 
The developer is proposing to a commercial/office building at this site.  The total square 
footage of the building will be 17,500 square feet during the initial phase. A second phase 
of construction involving up to 12,500 additional square feet of is possible at some point 
in the future.  The property is zoned B2-AC and could accommodate a building of up to 
100% of the property [§18-2103(b) and §18-2111] 
 
f. Additional Public Facilities or Utilities 
 
Sewer and water are available to support this development.  New water and sewer mains 
and services will be required for this building.  
 
No other utilities would be impacted by the development. 
 
The developer will be responsible for replacing any sidewalks damaged during 
construction of the project. 
 
No other utilities would be impacted by the development. [§18-2103(b) and §18-2111] 



 
4.  The Act requires a Redevelopment Plan provide for relocation of individuals and 
families displaced as a result of plan implementation.  This amendment does not 
provide for acquisition of any residences and therefore, no relocation is 
contemplated. [§18-2103.02] 
 
5.  No member of the Authority, nor any employee thereof holds any interest in any 
property in this Redevelopment Project Area. [§18-2106] 
 
6.  Section 18-2114 of the Act requires that the Authority consider:  
 
a. Method and cost of acquisition and preparation for redevelopment and estimated 
proceeds from disposal to redevelopers. 
 
The developer purchased the property for $222,238.  Costs for preparation for 
development are estimated at $145,937 
 
No property will be transferred to redevelopers by the Authority.  The developer will 
provide and secure all necessary financing. 
 
b. Statement of proposed method of financing the redevelopment project. 
 
The developer will provide all necessary financing for the project.  The Authority will 
assist the project by granting the sum of  $324,263 from the proceeds of the TIF 
Indebtedness issued by the Authority.  This indebtedness will be repaid from the Tax 
Increment Revenues generated from the project.  TIF revenues shall be made available to 
repay the original debt and associated interest after January 1, 2011 through December 
2025. 
 
c. Statement of feasible method of relocating displaced families. 
 
No families will be displaced as a result of this plan.  
 
7.  Section 18-2113 of the Act requires: 
 
Prior to recommending a redevelopment plan to the governing body for approval, an 
authority shall consider whether the proposed land uses and building requirements in the 
redevelopment project area are designed with the general purpose of accomplishing, in 
conformance with the general plan, a coordinated, adjusted, and harmonious development 
of the city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, 
promote health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, and the general welfare, as 
well as efficiency and economy in the process of development, including, among other 
things, adequate provision for traffic, vehicular parking, the promotion of safety from 
fire, panic, and other dangers, adequate provision for light and air, the promotion of the 
healthful and convenient distribution of population, the provision of adequate 
transportation, water, sewerage, and other public ut ilities, schools, parks, recreational and 



community facilities, and other public requirements, the promotion of sound design and 
arrangement, the wise and efficient expenditure of public funds, and the prevention of the 
recurrence of insanitary or unsafe dwelling accommodations or conditions of blight.   
 
The Authority has considered these elements in proposing this Plan Amendment. This 
amendment, in and of itself will promote consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, in 
that it will allow for the utilization of undeveloped commercial lots.  The only 
conceivable impact as a result of the proposed project is the creation of additional retail 
space in a commercial district.  This will not significantly impact traffic on Stolley Park 
Road or South Locust Street.  New commercial development will raise property values 
and provide a stimulus to keep surrounding properties properly maintained.  This will 
have the intended result of preventing recurring elements of unsafe buildings and 
blighting conditions.  
 
8.  Time Frame for Development  
 
Development of the first phase of this project (17,500 square feet of commercial space) is 
anticipated to be completed during the 2010 and 2011 calendar years.  A second phase of 
this project would include the development of up to 12,500 square feet of additional 
space.  This second phase is not anticipated to occur until at least 5 years after the initial 
construction.  The base tax year should be calculated on the value of the property as of 
January 1, 2010.  Excess valuation should be available for this project for 15 years 
beginning with the 2011 tax year.   
 
9.  Justification of Project 
 
This property has been vacant for more many years.  This is infill development in an area 
with all city services available.  This project does not propose to tear down any buildings 
with historic value but rather seeks to use vacant property for new construction.  
 
10.  Cost Benefit Analysis Section 18-2113 of the Act, further requires the Authority 
conduct a cost benefit analysis of the plan amendment in the event that Tax Increment 
Financing will be used.  This analysis must address specific statutory issues. 

 (a) Tax shifts resulting from the approval of the use of Tax Increment Financing; 

The redevelopment project area currently has an estimated valuation of $222,238.  
After acquisition of the property and subsequent improvements a commercial/office 
structure will be built at this location.  This will result in a $1,017,275 commercial 
building being placed on the tax rolls.  The proposed investment is substantially higher 
than the taxable value of the building.  No tax shifts are anticipated from the project.  The 
project creates additional valuation that will support taxing entities long after the project 
is paid off. 

(b) Public infrastructure and community public service needs impacts and local tax 
impacts arising from the approval of the redevelopment project; 



No additional public service needs have been identified.  Existing water and waste 
water facilities will not be impacted by this development.  The electric utility has 
sufficient capacity to support the development.  It is not anticipated that this will impact 
schools.  Fire and police protection are available and should not be impacted by this 
development. 

(c) Impacts on employers and employees of firms locating or expanding within the 
boundaries of the area of the redevelopment project; 

The proposed facility will provide jobs for persons employed at these establishments 
and for those building the new building. 

(d) Impacts on other employers and employees within the city or village and the 
immediate area that are located outside of the boundaries of the area of the 
redevelopment project; and 

This facility could draw employees from other similar facilities within the City.  

(e) Any other impacts determined by the authority to be relevant to the 
consideration of costs and benefits arising from the redevelopment project. 

This will provide appropriate development at a key entrance location to Fonner Park 
and the Nebraska State Fair. 

 
Time Frame for Development  
 
Development of this project is anticipated to be mostly complete during the 2010 
calendar year.  The base tax year should be calculated on the value of the property as of 
January 1, 2010.  Excess valuation should be available for this project for 15 years 
beginning in 2012.  Excess valuation will be used to pay the TIF Indebtedness issued by 
the CRA per the contract between the CRA and the developer for a period not to exceed 
15 years or an amount not to exceed $324,263 the projected amount of increment based 
upon the anticipated value of the project and current tax rate.  Based on the purchase 
price of the property and estimates of the expenses of eligible activities the developer will 
spend $368,275 on TIF eligible activities.  The developer will also carry the costs for 
allowable soft costs (estimated at $20,000) and interest on the money borrowed for these 
activities (estimated at $204,000).  A total of $324,263 of tax increment financing is 
proposed for $592,275 worth of eligible expenditures in the initial phase 
 
The developer has plans as shown for a possible expansion of the building space to 
30,000 square feet on these lots at some point in the future.  This could happen within 5 
years depending on the market conditions.  This expansion would create an additional 
$726,625 of anticipated valuation.  The additional increment would be applied $324,263 
TIF requested resulting in a quicker payment of the TIF and a shorter term on the TIF 



contract.  The additional 12,500 square feet will not be built if the original building is not 
constructed. 

 
Proposed Site Plan for Development at 107 and 203 E Stolley Park Road in Grand Island, 
NE 



GC

PR

PR

MHR
LM

P

Lo
cu

st 
St

 S

Be
llw

oo
d D

r

Stolley Park Rd E

Ch
an

tic
lee

r S
t

Pa
rkw

oo
d D

r

Sa
nta

 An
ita

 D
r

Holcomb St

Wyandotte St

Roush Ln

Stolley Park Rd W

Saratoga Cir

±GI City Limits

Figure 1
Future Land Use Map
Landuse

TA - Transitional Agriculture
DC - Down Town Commercial
GC - General Commercial
HC - Highway Commercial
MUC - Mixed Use Commerc ial
LM - Low to Medium Residential
MHR - Mobile Home
MO - Mixed Use Office
M - Manufacturing
MUM - Mixed Use Manufacturing
P - Public
PR - Parks and Recreation

March 26, 2010 CN

¯

Proposed TIF Area

Sonic

Racquet Center

USave Pharmacy



Lo
cu

st 
St

 S

Be
llw

oo
d D

r

Ch
an

tic
lee

r S
t

Brookline Dr

Wedgewood Dr

Holcomb St

Lin
co

ln 
Av

e S

Stolley Park Rd E

Wyandotte St

Ed
dy

 St
 S

Ba
nta

m 
St

Br
ah

ma
 S

t

Delta St

Stolley Park Rd W

Sa
nta

 An
ita

 D
r

Saratoga Cir

Roush Ln

Brahma St

Existing Land Use
railroad
Centerline

Commercial
County Government
Industrial
Large Lot Residential
Public
Residential
Street ROW

Existing Land Use
Area Boundary

Vacant ¯

Racquet Center

Sonic

USave Pharmacy

Proposed TIF Project



Lo
cu

st 
St

 S

Be
llw

oo
d D

r

Wedgewood Dr

Stolley Park Rd E

Ch
an

tic
lee

r S
t

Holcomb St

Ed
dy

 St
 S

Pa
rkw

oo
d D

r

Wyandotte St

Sa
nta

 An
ita

 D
r

Stolley Park Rd W

Bantam St

Delta St

Roush Ln

Brahma St

Saratoga Cir

March 26, 2010 CN
¯

Property Condition
Max_Cond

Excellent
Very Good
Good/Very Good
Good
Average/Good
Average
Badly Worn/Ave
Badly Worn
Worn Out

USave Pharmacy

Sonic

Racquet Center

Proposed TIF Area









































 

 

REDEVELOPMENT CONTRACT 

 
 

This Redevelopment Contract is made and entered into as of the _____th day of 
___________, 2010, by and between the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, acting as the 
Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska (“City”), and Ken 
Ray, LLC, a Nebraska corporation (“Redeveloper”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island, Nebraska (the “City”), in furtherance of the 

purposes and pursuant to the provisions of Section 12 of Article VIII of the Nebraska 
Constitution and Sections l8-2101 to 18-2154, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2007, as 
amended (collectively the “Act”), has designated an area in the City as blighted and substandard; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, City and Redeveloper desire to enter into this Redevelopment Contract for 
acquisition and redevelopment of a parcel in the blighted and substandard area; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein 
set forth, Authority and Redeveloper do hereby covenant, agree and bind themselves as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 

 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

 
Section 1.01 Terms Defined in this Redevelopment Contract. 
 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings for all purposes of this Redevelopment Contract, such definitions to be equally 
applicable to both the singular and plural forms and masculine, feminine and neuter gender of 
any of the terms defined: 

 
“Act” means Section 12 of Article VIII of the Nebraska Constitution, Sections 18-2101 

through 18-2154, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, 2007, as amended, and acts amendatory 
thereof and supplemental thereto 
 

“Authority” means the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Grand 
Island, Nebraska. 
 

“City” means the City of Grand Island, Nebraska. 
 

“Governing Body” means the Mayor and City Council of the City. 
 



“Holder” means the holders of TIF indebtedness issued by the Authority from time to 
time outstanding. 
 

“Liquidated Damages Amount” means the amounts to be repaid to Authority by 
Redeveloper pursuant to Section 6.02 of this Redevelopment Contract. 
 

“Project” means the improvements to the Redevelopment Area, as further described in 
Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference and, as used herein, shall include 
the Redevelopment Area real estate. 
 

“Project Cost Certification” means a statement prepared and signed by the Redeveloper 
verifying the Redeveloper has been legally obligated for the payment of Project Costs identified 
on Exhibit D 
 

“Project Costs” means only costs or expenses incurred by Redeveloper for the purposes 
set forth in §18-2103 (a) through (f), inclusive, of the Act as identified on Exhibit D. 
 

“Redeveloper” means Ken Ray, LLC, a Nebraska limited liability company. 
 

“Redevelopment Area” means that certain real property situated in the City of Grand 
Island, Hall County, Nebraska, which has been declared blighted and substandard by the City 
pursuant to the Act, and which is more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

“Redevelopment Contract” means this redevelopment contract between the Authority 
and Redeveloper with respect to the Project. 
 

 “Redevelopment Plan” means the Amended Redevelopment Plan for the 
Redevelopment Area related to the Project as set forth in the Redevelopment Contract, prepared 
by the Authority and approved by the City pursuant to the Act. 
 

“Resolution” means the Resolution of the Authority, as supplemented from time to time, 
approving this Redevelopment Contract and the issuance of the TIF Indebtedness. 
 

“TIF Indebtedness” means any bonds, notes, loans, and advances of money or other 
indebtedness, including interest and premiums, if any, thereon, incurred by the Authority 
pursuant to Article III hereof and secured in whole or in part by TIF Revenues. 
 

“TIF Revenues” means incremental ad valorem taxes generated by the Project which are 
allocated to and paid to the Authority pursuant to the Act. 
 
Section 1.02 Constructions and Interpretation. 
 

The provisions of this Redevelopment Contract shall be construed and interpreted in 
accordance with the following provisions: 
 



(a) Wherever in this Redevelopment Contract it is provided that any person 
may do or perform any act or thing the word “may” shall he deemed permissive and not 
mandatory and it shall be construed that such person shall have the right, but shall not be 
obligated, to do and perform any such act or thing. 

 
(b) The phrase “at any time” shall be construed as meaning “at any time or 

from time to time.” 
 

(c) The word ‘including” shall be construed as meaning ‘‘including, but not 
limited to.” 

 
(d) The words ‘will” and “shall” shall each be construed as mandatory. 

 
(e) The words “herein,” “hereof,” “hereunder,”” hereinafter” and words of 

similar import shall refer to the Redevelopment Contract as a whole rather than to any 
particular paragraph, section or subsection, unless the context specifically refers thereto. 

 
(f) Forms of words in the singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter shall 

be construed to include the other forms as the context may require. 
 

(g) The captions to the sections of this Redevelopment Contract are for 
convenience only and shall not be deemed part of the text of the respective sections and 
shall not vary by implication or otherwise any of the provisions hereof. 

 

ARTICLE II 

 

REPRESENTATIONS 

 
Section 2.01 Representations by Authority. 
 

The Authority makes the following representations and findings: 
 

(a) the Authority is a duly organized and validly existing Community 
Redevelopment Authority under the Act. 

 
(b) The Redevelopment Plan has been duly approved and adopted by the City 

pursuant to Section 18-2109 through 18-2117 of the Act. 
 

(c) The Authority deems it to be in the public interest and in furtherance of the 
purposes of the Act to accept the proposal submitted by Redeveloper as specified herein. 

 
(d) The Redevelopment Project will achieve the public purposes of the Act by, 

among other things, increasing employment, improving public infrastructure, increasing 
the tax base, and lessening conditions of blight and substandard in the Redevelopment 
Area. 

 



(e) (1) The Redevelopment Plan is feasible and in conformity with the general 
plan for the development of the City as a whole and the plan is in conformity with the 
legislative declarations and determinations set forth in the Act, and 

 
(2) Based on Representations made by the Redeveloper: 
  (i)   the Project would not be economically feasible without the use 
of tax-increment financing, 

 (ii) the Project would not occur in the Redevelopment Area without 
the use of tax-increment financing, and 

(iii) the costs and benefits of the Project, including costs and benefits 
to other affected political subdivisions, the economy of the community, and 
the demand for public and private services have been analyzed by the 
Authority and have been found to be in the long-term best interest of the 
community impacted by the Project. 

 
(f) The Authority has determined that the proposed land uses and building 

requirements in the Redevelopment Area are designed with the general purpose of 
accomplishing, in conformance with the general plan, a coordinated, adjusted, and 
harmonious development of the City and its environs which will, in accordance with 
present and future needs, promote health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity, 
and the general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in the process of 
development: including, among other things, adequate provision for traffic, vehicular 
parking, the promotion of safety from fire, panic, and other dangers, adequate provision 
for light and air, the promotion of the healthful and convenient distribution of population, 
the provision of adequate transportation, water, sewerage and other public utilities, 
schools, parks, recreational and community facilities, and other public requirements, the 
promotion of sound design and arrangement, the wise and efficient expenditure of public 
funds, and the prevention of’ the recurrence of insanitary or unsafe dwelling 
accommodations, or conditions of blight. 

 
Section 2.02 Representations of Redeveloper. 
 

The Redeveloper makes the following representations: 
 

(a) The Redeveloper is a Nebraska limited liability company, having the power 
to enter into this Redevelopment Contract and perform all obligations contained herein 
and by proper action has been duly authorized to execute and deliver this Redevelopment 
Contract. 

 
(b) The execution and delivery of the Redevelopment Contract and the 

consummation of the transactions therein contemplated will not conflict with or constitute 
a breach of or default under any bond, debenture, note or other evidence of indebtedness 
or any contract, loan agreement or lease to which Redeveloper is a party or by which it is 
bound, or result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance of any 
nature upon any of the property or assets of the Redeveloper contrary to the terms of any 
instrument or agreement. 



 
(c) There is no litigation pending or to the best of its knowledge threatened 

against Redeveloper affecting its ability to carry out the acquisition, construction, 
equipping and furnishing of the Project or the carrying into effect of this Redevelopment 
Contract or, except as disclosed in writing to the Authority, as in any other matter 
materially affecting the ability of Redeveloper to perform its obligations hereunder. 

 
(d) Any financial statements of the Redeveloper or its Members delivered to 

the Authority prior to the date hereof are true and correct in all respects and fairly present 
the financial condition of the Redeveloper and the Project as of the dates thereof; no 
materially adverse change has occurred in the financial condition reflected therein since 
the respective dates thereof; and no additional borrowings have been made by the 
Redeveloper since the date thereof except in the ordinary course of business, other than 
the borrowing contemplated hereby or borrowings disclosed to or approved by the 
Authority. 

 
(e) The Project would not be economically feasible without the use of tax 

increment financing. 
 
(f) The Project would not occur in the Redevelopment Area without the use of 

tax-increment financing. 
 
(g) The Redeveloper is an accredited investor as that term is defined for 

purposes Regulation D, issued pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
Section 3.01 Division of Taxes. 
 

In accordance with Section 18-2147 of the Act, the Authority hereby provides that any ad 
valorem tax on the following real property in the Project: to wit: Lots 4 and 5, Equestrian 
Meadows Subdivision to the City of Grand Island, Hall County, Nebraska, for the benefit of any 
public body be divided for a period of fifteen years after the effective date of this provision as set 
forth in this section. The effective date of this provision shall be January 1, 2011. 
 

(a) That proportion of the ad valorem tax which is produced by levy at the rate 
fixed each year by or for each public body upon the Redevelopment Project Valuation (as 
defined in the Act) shall be paid into the funds of each such public body in the same 
proportion as all other taxes collected by or for the bodies; and 

 
(b) That proportion of the ad valorem tax on real property in the 

Redevelopment Area in excess of such amount (the “Incremental Ad Valorem Tax”), if 
any, shall be allocated to, is pledged to, and, when collected, paid into a special fund of 
the Authority to pay the principal of, the interest on, and any premiums due in connection 



with the bonds, loans, notes or advances of money to, or indebtedness incurred by 
whether funded, refunded, assumed, or otherwise, such Authority for financing or 
refinancing, in whole or in part, such Project. When such bonds, loans, notes, advances of 
money, or indebtedness, including interest and premium due have been paid, the 
Authority shall so notify the County Assessor and County Treasurer and all ad valorem 
taxes upon real property in such Project shall be paid into the funds of the respective 
public bodies. 

 
Section 3.02 Issuance of TIF Indebtedness 
 

Authority shall incur TIF Indebtedness in the form and principal amount and bearing 
interest and being subject to such terms and conditions as are specified on the attached exhibit C. 
No TIF Indebtedness will be issued until Redeveloper has (a) acquired fee title to the 
Redevelopment Area; (b) obtained financing commitments as described in Section 5.01; and (c) 
entered into a contract for construction of the Project. The Authority shall have no obligation to 
find a lender or investor to acquire the TIF Indebtedness, but rather shall issue the TIF 
Indebtedness to the Redeveloper upon payment of the principal amount thereof.  The purchase 
price of the TIF Indebtedness may be offset against the Grant described in Section 3.04 hereof.  
 
  The TIF Indebtedness issued pursuant to the provisions of this contract constitutes a 
limited obligation of the Authority payable exclusively from that portion of the ad valorem real 
estate taxes mentioned in subdivision (1)(b) of Section 18-2147, R.R.S. Neb. 2007, as levied, 
collected and apportioned from year to year with respect to certain real estate located within the 
"Redevelopment Area"  The TIF Indebtedness shall not constitute a general obligation of the 
Authority and the Authority shall be liable for the payment thereof only out of said portion of 
taxes as described in this paragraph. The TIF Indebtedness shall not constitute an obligation of 
the State of Nebraska or of the City or the Authority (except for such receipts as have been 
pledged pursuant to Section 3.03) and neither the State or Nebraska, the Authority nor the City 
shall be liable for the payment thereof from any fund or source including but not limited to tax 
monies belonging to either thereof (except for such receipts as have been pledged pursuant to 
Section 3.03).  Neither the members of the Authority's governing body nor any person executing 
the TIF Indebtedness shall be liable personally on the TIF Indebtedness by reason of the issuance 
thereof.  The Authority’s obligation to the holder of the TIF Indebtedness shall terminate, in all 
events no later than 15 years from the effective date set forth in Section 3.01 hereof. 
  
Section 3.03  Pledge of TIF Revenues. 
 

The Authority hereby pledges 100% of the annual TIF Revenues as security for the TIF 
Indebtedness. 

 
Section 3.04  Grant of Proceeds of’ TIF Indebtedness. 
 

From the proceeds of the TIF indebtedness incurred as described on Exhibit C, the 
Authority shall grant the following sums to the following entities, to wit:  100% to the 
Redeveloper for Project Costs. 
 



Notwithstanding the foregoing, the amount of the grant shall not exceed the amount of 
Project Costs certified pursuant to Section 4.02. The grants shall be paid to the Redeveloper upon 
certification that the Redeveloper has incurred or is obligated to incur such Project Costs which 
include supporting documentation requested by Authority and shall, if requested by Redeveloper, 
be made in one or more advances. 

 
 Section 3.05  Creation of Fund. 
 

The Authority will create a special fund to collect and hold the TIF Revenues. Such 
special fund shall be used for no purpose other than to pay TIF Indebtedness issued pursuant to 
Sections 3.02 above. 
 

ARTICLE IV 

 

OBLIGATIONS OF REDEVELOPER 

 
Section 4.01 Construction of Project; Insurance. 
 

(a) Redeveloper will complete the Project and install all infrastructure, improvements, 
buildings, fixtures, equipment and furnishings necessary to operate the Project. Redeveloper 
shall be solely responsible for obtaining all permits and approvals necessary to acquire, construct 
and equip the Project. Until construction of the Project has been completed, Redeveloper shall 
make reports in such detail and at such times as may be reasonably requested by the Authority as 
to the actual progress of Redeveloper with respect to construction of the Project. Promptly after 
completion by the Redeveloper of the Project, the Redeveloper shall furnish to the Authority a 
Certificate of Completion. The certification by the Redeveloper shall be a conclusive 
determination of satisfaction of the agreements and covenants in this Redevelopment Contract 
with respect to the obligations of Redeveloper and its successors and assigns to construct the 
Project. As used herein, the term “completion” shall meant substantial completion of the Project. 
 

(b) Any general contractor chosen by the Redeveloper or the Redeveloper itself shall be 
required to obtain and keep in force at all times until completion of construction, policies of 
insurance including coverage for contractors’ general liability and completed operations and a 
penal bond as required by the Act. The City, the Authority and the Redeveloper shall be named 
as additional insured. Any contractor chosen by the Redeveloper or the Redeveloper itself, as an 
owner, shall be required to purchase and maintain property insurance upon the Project to the full 
insurable value thereof. This insurance shall insure against the perils of fire and extended 
coverage and shall include “All Risk” insurance for physical loss or damage. The contractor or 
the Redeveloper, as the case may be, shall furnish the Authority with a Certificate of Insurance 
evidencing policies as required above. Such certificates shall state that the insurance companies 
shall give the Authority prior written notice in the event of cancellation of or material change in 
any of any of the policies. 
 
Section 4.02 Cost Certification. 
 

Redeveloper shall submit to Authority a certification of Project Costs, on or before the 



issuance of the TIF Indebtedness which shall contain detail and documentation showing the 
payment or obligation for payment of Project Costs specified on the attached Exhibit D in an 
amount at least equal to the grant to Redeveloper pursuant to Section 3.05. 
 
Section 4.03 Legal Costs. 
 

Redeveloper shall pay the Authority the sum of $5,000 for the costs incurred by the 
Authority associated with the issuance of the TIF Indebtedness.  Redeveloper understands that 
the law firm assisting with the issuance of the TIF Indebtedness represents the Authority and not 
the Redeveloper. 

  
Section 4.04 No Discrimination. 
 

Redeveloper agrees and covenants for itself, its successors and assigns that as long as any 
TIF Indebtedness is outstanding, it will not discriminate against any person or group of persons 
on account of race, sex, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, disability, marital status or 
receipt of public assistance in connection with the Project. Redeveloper, for itself and its 
successors and assigns, agrees that during the construction of the Project, Redeveloper will not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, sex, 
color, national origin, ancestry, disability, marital status or receipt of public assistance. 
Redeveloper will comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws related to the Project. 
 
Section 4.05 Pay Real Estate Taxes. 
 

Redeveloper intends to create a taxable real property valuation of the Redevelopment 
Area and Project of One Million Two Hundred and Forty Thousand Dollars ($1,240,000) no later 
than no later than January 1, 2011. During the period that any TIF Indebtedness is outstanding, 
neither the Redeveloper, nor its assigns, will (1) file a protest seeking to obtain a real estate 
property valuation on the Redevelopment Area of less than One Million Two Hundred and Forty 
Thousand Dollars ($1,240,000) after substantial completion or occupancy; (2) convey the 
Redevelopment Area on structures thereon to any entity which would be exempt from the 
payment of real estate taxes or cause the nonpayment of such real estate taxes; nor (3) allow real 
estate taxes and assessments levied on the Redevelopment Area and Project to become 
delinquent during the term that any TIF Indebtedness is outstanding.   
 
Section 4.07  Assignment or Conveyance.  
 

Any assignment or conveyance of the any portion of the Redevelopment, the Project or 
any interest therein prior to the termination of the 15 year period commencing on the effective 
date specified in Section 3.01 hereof Area by the Redeveloper shall be subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Redevelopment Contract.  

 
Section 4.08 Purchase of TIF Indebtedness. 
 
 The Redeveloper shall purchase the TIF Indebtedness at 100% of the principal amount 
thereof upon issuance of such debt.  The Authority may provide that such purchase be offset 
against the grant provided in Section 3.04 hereof. 



 
Section 4.09 Penal Bond. 
 
 The Developer shall execute a penal bond for the Project with good and sufficient surety to be 
approved by the Authority meeting the requirements of Section 18-2151, Reissue Revised Statutes of 
Nebraska, as amended, on or prior to its execution of this Contract. 
 

ARTICLE V 

 

FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT; ENCUMBRANCES 

 
Section 5.01 Financing. 
 

Redeveloper shall pay all Project Costs and any and all other costs related to the 
Redevelopment Area and the Project which are in excess of the amounts paid from the proceeds 
of the TIF Indebtedness granted to Redeveloper. Prior to issuance of the TIF Indebtedness, 
Redeveloper shall provide Authority with evidence satisfactory to the Authority that private 
funds have been committed to the Redevelopment Project in amounts sufficient to complete the 
Redevelopment Project. Redeveloper shall timely pay all costs, expenses, fees, charges and other 
amounts associated with the Project. 

 
 

ARTICLE VI 

 

DEFAULT, REMEDIES; INDEMNIFICATION 

 
Section 6.01 General Remedies of Authority and Redeveloper. 
 
Subject to the further provisions of this Article VI, in the event of any failure to perform or 
breach of this Redevelopment Contract or any of its terms or conditions, by any party hereto or 
any successor to such party, such party, or successor, shall, upon written notice from the other, 
proceed immediately to commence such actions as may be reasonably designed to cure or 
remedy such failure to perform or breach which cure or remedy shall be accomplished within a 
reasonable time by the diligent pursuit of corrective action. In case such action is not taken, or 
diligently pursued, or the failure to perform or breach shall not be cured or remedied within a 
reasonable time, this Redevelopment Contract shall be in default and the aggrieved party 
may institute such proceedings as may be necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under this 
Redevelopment Contract, including, but not limited to, proceedings to compel specific 
performance by the party failing to perform on in breach of its obligations. 
 
Section 6.02 Additional Remedies of Authority 
 
 In the event that: 
 

(a) the Redeveloper, on successor in interest, shall fail to complete the 
construction of the Project on or before January 1, 2011, or shall abandon construction 
work for any period of 90 days, 



 
(b) the Redeveloper, on successor in interest, shall fail to pay real estate taxes 

or assessments on the Redevelopment Area on any part thereof or payments in lieu of 
taxes pursuant to Section 4.07 when due; or 

 
(c)  There is, in violation of Section 4.08 of this Redevelopment Contract, and 

such failure or action by the Redeveloper has not been cured within 30 days following 
written notice from Authority, then the Redeveloper shall be in default of this 
Redevelopment Contract. 

 
In the event of such failure to perform, breach or default occurs and is not cured in the 

period herein provided, the parties agree that the damages caused to the Authority would be 
difficult to determine with certainty and that a reasonable estimation of the amount of damages 
that could be incurred is the amount of the grant to Redeveloper pursuant to Section 3.04 of this 
Redevelopment Contract, less any reductions in the principal amount of the TIF Indebtedness, 
plus interest on such amounts as provided herein (the “Liquidated Damages Amount”). The 
Liquidated Damages Amount shall be paid by Redeveloper to Authority within 30 days of 
demand from Authority. 
 

Interest shall accrue on the Liquidated Damages Amount at the rate of one percent (1%) 
over the prime rate as published and modified in the Wall Street Journal from time to time and 
interest shall commence from the date that the Authority gives notice to the Redeveloper 
demanding payment. 
 

Payment of the Liquidated Damages Amount shall not relieve Redeveloper of its 
obligation to pay real estate taxes or assessments with respect to the Project. 
 
Section 6.03 Remedies in the Event of Other Redeveloper Defaults. 
 

In the event the Redeveloper fails to perform any other provisions of this Redevelopment 
Contract (other than those specific provisions contained in Section 6.02),  the Redeveloper shall 
be in default. In such an instance, the Authority may seek to enforce the terms of  this 
Redevelopment Contract or exercise any other remedies that may be provided in this 
Redevelopment Contract or by applicable law; provided, however, that the default covered by 
this Section shall not give rise to a right or rescission on termination of this Redevelopment 
Contract, and shall not be covered by the Liquidated Damages Amount. 
 
Section 6.04 Forced Delay Beyond Party’s Control. 
 

For the purposes of any of the provisions of this Redevelopment Contract, neither the 
Authority nor the Redeveloper, as the case may be, nor any successor in interest, shall be 
considered in breach of or default in its obligations with respect to the conveyance or preparation 
of the Redevelopment Area for redevelopment, or the beginning and completion of construction 
of the Project, or progress in respect thereto, in the event of forced delay in the performance of 
such obligations due to unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its fault or 
negligence, including, but not restricted to, acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the 



Government, acts of the other party, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, 
freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather or delays in subcontractors due to such causes; 
it being the purpose and intent of this provision that in the event of the occurrence of any such 
forced delay, the time or times for performance of the obligations of the Authority or of the 
Redeveloper with respect to construction of the Project, as the case may be, shall be extended for 
the period of the forced delay: Provided, that the party seeking the benefit of the provisions of 
this section shall, within thirty (30) days after the beginning of any such forced delay, have first 
notified the other party thereto in writing, and of the cause or causes thereof and requested an 
extension for the period of the forced delay. 

 
 
Section 6.05  Limitations of Liability; Indemnification. 
 

Notwithstanding anything in this Article VI or this Redevelopment Contract to the 
contrary, neither the City, the Authority, nor their officers, directors, employees, agents or their 
governing bodies shall have any pecuniary obligation or monetary liability under this 
Redevelopment Contract. The sole obligation of the Authority under this Redevelopment 
Contract shall be the issuance of the TIF Indebtedness and granting of a portion of the proceeds 
thereof to Redeveloper, as specifically set forth in Sections 3.02 and 3.04. The obligation of the 
City and Authority on any TIF Indebtedness shall be limited solely to the payment of the TIF 
Revenues on the TIF Indebtedness. Specifically, but without limitation, neither the City or 
Authority shall  be liable for any costs, liabilities, actions, demands, or damages for failure of 
any representations, warranties or obligations hereunder. The Redeveloper releases the City and 
Authority from, agrees that neither the City or Authority shall be liable for, and agrees to 
indemnify and hold the City and Authority harmless from any liability for any loss or damage to 
property or any injury to or death of any person that may be occasioned by any cause whatsoever 
pertaining to the Project. 
 

The Redeveloper will indemnify and hold each of the City and Authority and their 
directors, officers, agents, employees and member of their governing bodies free and harmless 
from any loss, claim, damage, demand, tax, penalty, liability, disbursement, expense, including 
litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees and expenses, or court costs arising out of any damage or 
injury, actual or claimed, of whatsoever kind or character, to property (including loss of use 
thereof) or persons, occurring or allegedly occurring in, on or about the Project during the term 
of this Redevelopment Contract or arising out of any action or inaction of Redeveloper, whether 
on not related to the Project, or resulting from or in any way connected with specified events, 
including the management of’ the Project, or in any way related to the enforcement of this 
Redevelopment Contract or army other cause pertaining to the Project. 
 

ARTICLE VII 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 7.01 Notice Recording. 
 

This Redevelopment Contract or a notice memorandum of this Redevelopment Contract 



shall be recorded with the County Register of Deeds in which the Redevelopment Area is 
located. 
 
Section 7.02 Governing Law. 
 

This Redevelopment Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of’ Nebraska, 
including but not limited to the Act. 
 
Section 7.03 Binding Effect; Amendment. 
 
This Redevelopment Contract shall be binding on the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and assigns. This Redevelopment Contract shall run with the Redevelopment Area. 
The Redevelopment Contract shall not be amended except by a writing signed by the party to be 
bound. 
 
Section 7.04 Third Party Enforcement, 
 
The provisions of this Redevelopment Contract which obligate the Redeveloper shall inure to the 
benefit of the holder of the TIF Indebtedness, the Hall County Assessor, the City and the 
Authority, any of whom may, but are not obligated to enforce the terms of this Redevelopment 
Contract in a court of law. 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Redeveloper have signed this Redevelopment 
Contract as of the date and year first above written. 
 
 
 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
 AUTHORITY OF THE CITY  OF 
ATTEST:           GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ By:___________________________________ 
Secretary         Chairman 
 
 



 
Ken Ray, LLC 
 
By:_____________________________  
     Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NEBRASKA   ) 
        ) ss. 
COUNTY OF HALL) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______, 

_____, by _______________ and ________________, Chair and Secretary, respectively, of the 
Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, on behalf of the 
Authority. 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Notary Public  



 
STATE OF NEBRASKA ) 
     ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______, 

_____, by ___________________, Manager of Ken Ray, LLC, on behalf of the corporation. 
 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Notary Public  

 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REDEVELOPMENT AREA 

 
 
Lots 2 and 3 of Equestrian Meadows Second Subdivision in Grand Island, Hall County, 
Nebraska 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A-I 



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 
Site acquisition, demolition and construction of a 17,500 square foot commercial/ office building 
together with the required electrical, water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer extensions, as 
required by the City of Grand Island.  At some point in the future an additional 12,500 square 
foot commercial/ office building space may also be constructed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B- 1 
 



 
EXHIBIT C 

 
TIF INDEBTEDNESS 

 
 

1. Principal Amount: $324,350.00 [annual payment amounts assumed are $21,400] 
 

2. Payments: Semi-annually or more frequent, with payments limited to                                         
  annual incremental taxes revenues from the project. 
   
 
3.        Interest Rate:   Zero percent (0.00%) 
 
4.        Maturity Date:  On or before December 31, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C-1 



 
EXHIBIT D 

 
PROJECT COSTS 

 
All Project Costs payable from the proceeds of TIF indebtedness pursuant to the Act including: 
 
1. Redevelopment Area Acquisition cost 
 
2. Site demolition work and site preparation 
 
3. Utility extensions, installation of gas, water, sewer and electrical lines and equipment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-1 



Item E3
Public Hearing Concerning Acquisition of Utility Easements - 4100 
West Husker Hwy., 3303 and 3311 Firestone Street - Indianhead 
Golf Club
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Robert H. Smith, Asst. Utilities Director 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easements – 4100 West Husker 

Hwy., 3303 & 3311 Firestone Street, – Indianhead Golf 
Club 

 
Item #’s:  E-3, G-4, G-5, & G-6 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 
 

Background  
 
Nebraska State Law requires that acquisition of property must be approved by City 
Council. The Utilities Department needs to acquire three easements relative to the 
property of Indianhead Golf Club, Inc.  
 
A new housing development is planned for the area adjacent to Indianhead Golf Course, 
north of Husker Highway, and east of Engleman Road. The development is known as 
Fairway Crossings at Indianhead Golf Club First Subdivision. A three phase overhead 
power line currently crosses that property from Engleman Road to the Golf Clubhouse 
providing electrical service to the Clubhouse. That line must be removed prior to 
developing the property.  
 

Discussion 
 
To facilitate the removal of the overhead line, a new three phase underground conduit 
and cable will be placed from the entrance of the Golf Club parking lot to a new pad-
mounted transformer located on the west side of the parking lot (easement described as 
4100 West Husker Hwy). To ensure the transformer is part of a loop and can be fed from 
two directions, two additional new 10 foot easements are required across two lots of the 
new development to give one total 20 foot wide easement from the new transformer, then 
west into the new development. The electrical feed can then follow public streets to 
complete the loop. Those easements are described as 3311 Firestone Street, and 3303 
Firestone Street. All three properties are owned by Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., and the 
owner is in agreement with the easement acquisitions. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  



 
The Council may: 
 

1. Make a motion to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4.       Take no action on the issue 
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolutions for the 
acquisition of the three easements for one dollar ($1.00) each (for a total of $3.00). 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easements. 









Item E4
Public Hearing Concerning Acquisition of Utility Easement - 
between Airport Road & Abbott Road, and between North Road & 
Webb Road - Max and Lizbeth Mader
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
   Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – Between Airport and 

Abbot Roads, and North and Webb Roads – Max and 
Lizbeth Mader 

 
Item #’s:  E-4 & G-7 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 
 

Background  
 
The Electric Department has electric distribution substations connected at various 
distances along a 115 kV transmission loop. The loop generally runs along the outer edge 
of the urban area, providing power to the substations and providing power supply 
redundancy by use of the looped configuration. A map of the transmission system is 
attached for reference. Substations reduce voltage from the 115,000 volt level to 13,800 
volts for distribution to individual customers across the City. Substations “E,” located 
north of Swift on the east side of the loop, and “F,” located north of Menards on the west 
side of the loop, are the newest substations. They were placed in initial service in 2001, 
and completed in 2007. 
 
Recognizing that the City is continuing to grow, that future transmission line construction 
will occur and that reliability improvement is always important, Substations “E” and “F” 
were constructed with provisions to accept additional 115 kV transmission regional 
interconnections. In the long range plan of the Electric Department, these substations 
were designed for new transmission interconnections to meet future growth. The Utilities 
Department is currently in the process of acquiring easements to provide for the 
construction of an additional 115 kV transmission interconnection to the north of the 
City.  
 

Discussion 
 
Easement negotiations are completed for a tract of property owned by Max and Lizbeth 
Mader. The property is located between Airport and Abbot Roads, and between North 
and Webb Roads, in Hall County. A map of the proposed easement acquisition is 
attached. The negotiated price of the easement is $1,615.00. 
 



 
Alternatives 

 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Make a motion to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the 
acquisition of the easement for One Thousand Six Hundred Fifteen and No/100 Dollars 
($1,615.00). 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement. 







Item E5
Public Hearing Concerning Acquisition of Utility Easement - 
between White Cloud Road & Abbott Road, and between North 
Road & Engleman Road - Lloyd and Patricia Mader
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
   Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Acquisition of Utility Easement – Between White Cloud 

and Abbott Roads, and North and Engleman Roads – 
Lloyd and Patricia Mader 

 
Item #’s:  E-5 & G-8 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 
 

Background  
 
The Electric Department has electric distribution substations connected at various 
distances along a 115 kV transmission loop. The loop generally runs along the outer edge 
of the urban area, providing power to the substations and providing power supply 
redundancy by use of the looped configuration. A map of the transmission system is 
attached for reference. Substations reduce voltage from the 115,000 volt level to 13,800 
volts for distribution to individual customers across the City.  Substations “E,” located 
north of Swift on the east side of the loop, and “F,” located north of Menards on the west 
side of the loop, are the newest substations. They were placed in initial service in 2001, 
and completed in 2007. 
 
Recognizing that the City is continuing to grow, that future transmission line construction 
will occur and that reliability improvement is always important, Substations “E” and “F” 
were constructed with provisions to accept additional 115 kV transmission regional 
interconnections. In the long range plan of the Electric Department, these substations 
were designed for new transmission interconnections to meet future growth. The Utilities 
Department is currently in the process of acquiring easements to provide for the 
construction of an additional 115 kV transmission interconnection to the north of the 
City.  
 

Discussion 
 
Easement negotiations are completed for a tract of property owned by Lloyd and Patricia 
Mader. The property is located between White Cloud and Abbott Roads, and between 
North and Engleman Roads, in Hall County. A map of the proposed easement is attached. 
Within this easement area, there is an existing irrigation well and piping. In order to clear 
the easement for line construction and future operation and maintenance, the present well 



will be abandoned and a replacement well drilled outside of the easement. The payment 
for this easement includes payment to the property owner for well relocation. The cost of 
the well relocation is based upon actual price quotes from licensed well drillers. Total 
cost of the easement, including well relocation is $51,286.84. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand. 
The Council may: 
 

1. Make a motion to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution for the 
acquisition of the easement for Fifty One Thousand Two Hundred Eight Six and Eighty 
Four/100 Dollars ($51,286.84). 

 
Sample Motion 

 
Move to approve acquisition of the Utility Easement. 







Item F1
#9261 - Consideration of Text Amendment to Chapter 36-103 of 
the Grand Island City Code Relative to Wind Energy Systems 
(Second Reading)
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Regional Planning Commission 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Concerning Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance for 

the City of Grand Island and its 2 Mile Extra-
Territorial Jurisdiction. (Second Reading) 

 
Item #’s:  F-1 
 
Presenter(s): Chad Nabity AICP, Regional Planning Director 
 
 

Background  
 

Concerning amendments to the Zoning Resolution the City of Grand Island and its 2 
mile extra-territorial jurisdiction. Changes are being proposed to the following 
sections of each resolution or ordinance: Wind Energy Systems sections Grand Island 
(§36-103 Wind Energy Systems), the proposed changes will repeal the existing 
regulations and replace them with updated regulations including micro, small and 
commercial wind energy conversion systems and regulations to allow all three sizes 
under differing circumstances. 
 

Discussion 
 
At the regular meeting of the Regional Planning Commission, held April 7, 2010, the 
above item was considered following a public hearing. 

 
From the Planning Commission Meeting: 
 
O’Neill opened the Public Hearing.  
 
Nabity explained the request concerning amendments Wind energy is an evolving 
technology that is impacting land use in central Nebraska. It is now possible to buy a 
600W wind turbine at Menards. It is inevitable that people will begin putting up wind 
generation units. We need to have regulations in place that define how and where this can 
be done before people put them up. 
 
The regulations for the City of Grand Island were modified in 2009 to accommodate the 
changing technology and staff is recommending additional changes. The regulations 
regarding wind energy systems for Hall County, Wood River, Alda, Cairo and Doniphan 



have not been modified since they were adopted in 2004. Planning Commission Staff is 
recommending similar regulations for all of the entities served by the Hall County 
Planning Department. Each entity will have the opportunity to review, modify and 
potentially adopt these regulations. These regulations will define 3 types of wind energy 
systems based in the generation capacity and the size of the units. Some form of wind 
generation would be permitted in all zoning districts. 
 
Jeff Berggren with Husker Wind Power in Grand Island expressed support for the 
regulations as they are written. These regulations would allow reputable wind energy 
companies to serve their clients in a responsible manner. Mr. Berggren set up a micro 
wind generation unit at the meeting so that Planning Commission members could see 
what one would look like. Mr. Berggren also made the point that these systems are 
not designed to sell a substantial amount of power back to the grid but rather to lower 
the consumption of electricity purchased by the property owner. 
 
Wind Energy Conversion Systems: 
 
Micro Wind Energy Conversion Systems: 
 

Micro Wind Energy Conversion System (MWECS) shall mean a wind energy 
conversion system consisting of a wind turbine, a tower, and associated control or 
conversion electronics, which has a rated capacity of not more than 5 kW and which is 
intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. Rotor Diameter shall 
not exceed 7 feet. 
 
MWECS would be allowed in all zoning districts and on all lots with a permitted 
principal use as long as the system as constructed conforms to the standards defined in 
the regulations. There is no maximum height limitation, but height would be limited by 
fall zone and FAA regulations and impact on nearby regulated airports. Wind Turbines 
with a rotor diameter of greater than 7 feet but rated capacities of less than 5kW would be 
considered small wind energy conversion systems. 
 
Small Wind Energy Conversion Systems  
 

Small Wind Energy Conversion System (SWECS) shall mean a wind energy 
conversion system consisting of a wind turbine, a tower, and associated control or 
conversion electronics, which has a rated capacity not less than 5 kW and not more than 
100 kW or has a rated capacity of not more than 5 kW and a rotor diameter of greater 
than 7 feet and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility 
power. 

 
SWECS would be allowed in all zoning districts and on all lots with a permitted principal 
use as long as the system as constructed conforms to the standards defined in the 
regulations. There is no maximum height limitation, but height would be limited by fall 
zone and FAA regulations and impact on nearby regulated airports. 
 



Setbacks for MWECS an SWECS 
 
The setbacks for MWECS and SWECS are determined by the fall zone. Fall zone is a 
function of the height of the tower and the underlying zoning setbacks. Tower height is 
differentiated based on whether the tower is mounted on building or on the ground. 
 

(N) Tower Height (Ground Mounted) shall mean the total height of the 
Wind Energy Conversion System, between the ground level at the base of the tower and  
the top of the tower, exclusive of the rotor blades. 
 (O) Tower Height (Roof Mounted) shall mean the total height of the Wind 
Energy Conversion System, between the roof level at the base of the tower and the top of 
the tower, exclusive of the rotor blades. 
 
The fall zone for ground mounted towers is the height of the tower plus the underlying 
setback. The fall zone for roof mounted towers is 125% of the height of the tower plus 
the underlying setback for MWCES and 150% of the height of the tower plus the 
underlying setback for SWCES. 
 
 
Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (WECS) 
 

Commercial Wind Energy Conversion System (WECS) shall mean a wind 
energy conversion system of equal to or greater than 100 kW in total name plate 
generating capacity.  
 
WECS are also allowed under these regulations in the following zoning districts based on 
entity with jurisdiction. These are not allowed in every zoning district. They are primarily 
allowed in the Agricultural and Transitional Agriculture Zones. A full listing of the zones 
where they would be allowed is included below. A WECS would be any system that 
generates more than 100KW. These would need to meet all of the requirements in the 
regulations and receive a conditional use permit prior to beginning construction.  
 
Grand Island  
 
Commercial/Utility Grade wind energy systems shall be a Conditional Use within the 
AG-2 Secondary Agricultural District, the TA Transitional Agriculture District, the AG-
SI Special Agriculture/Industrial Zone, AG-SE Special Agriculture District/Events Zone, 
and the AG-SC Special Agriculture District/Conservation Zone. 
 

Recommendation 
 
A motion was made by Bredthauer to recommend approval to all entities, the Text 
Amendment pertaining to Wind Energy Systems sections for Hall County (§6.03 Wind 
Energy Installation), Grand Island (§36-103 Wind Energy Systems), Wood River, Alda, 
Doniphan and Cairo (§7.15 Wind Energy Systems) and seconded by Aguilar, to 
recommend approval as presented. 



 
A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed with 10 members present, 10 
voting in favor (O’Neill, Ruge, Haskins, Hayes, Aguilar, Reynolds, Monter, 
Bredthauer, Connelly, Snodgrass) and no member present voting against. 
 

Sample Motion 
 

Move to approve the ordinance to the Text Amendment pertaining to Grand Island (§36-
103 Wind Energy Systems). 



 
Approved as to Form ¤  ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤   City Attorney 

ORDINANCE NO. 9261 
 
 An ordinance to amend Chapter 36 of the Grand Island City Code; specifically, to 

amend Section 36-103 Wind Energy Conversion Systems to provide for regulations and 

definitions regarding Wind Energy Conversion Systems; to provide for regulations and 

restrictions regarding Micro Wind Energy Conversion Systems; to provide for regulations and 

restrictions regarding Small Wind Energy Conversion Systems; to provide for regulations and 

requirements for Commercial/Utility Grade Wind Energy Conversion Systems; to repeal any 

ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith; and to provide for publication in pamphlet 

form and the effective date of this ordinance. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA: 

 SECTION 1.  Section 36-103 of the Grand Island City Code is hereby amended to 

read as follows: 

36-103. Wind Energy Conversion Systems  
 
(1) Definitions 
The following are defined for the specific use of this section. 
 (A) Aggregate Project shall mean projects that are developed and operated in a coordinated fashion, 
but which have multiple entities separately owning one or more of the individual WECS within the larger project. 
Associated infrastructure such as power lines and transformers that service the facility may be owned by a separate 
entity but are also part of the aggregated project. 
 (B) Commercial WECS  shall mean a wind energy conversion system of equal to or greater than 100 
kW in total name plate generating capacity. 
 (C) Connector Line  shall mean any power conductor that carries electrical power from one or more 
wind turbines to the point of interconnection with the distribution system.  
 (D) Hub Height shall mean the distance from ground level as measured to the centerline of the rotor.  
 (E)  Meteorological Tower shall mean, for purposes of this regulation, a tower which is erected 
primarily to measure wind speed and directions plus other data relevant to siting a Wind Energy Conversion System. 
Meteorological towers do not include towers and equipment used by airports, the Nebraska Department of Roads, or 
other applications to monitor weather conditions.  

(F) Micro Wind Energy Conversion System (MWECS) shall mean a wind energy conversion 
system consisting of a wind turbine, a tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated 
capacity of not more than 5 kW and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power.  
Rotor Diameter shall not exceed 7 feet. 
 (G) Property Line shall mean the boundary line of the area over which the entity applying for a Wind 
Energy Conversion System permit has legal control for the purpose of installing, maintaining and operating a Wind 
Energy Conversion System. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9261 (Cont.) 
 

- 2 - 
 

 (H) Public Conservation lands  shall mean land owned in fee title by State or Federal agencies and 
managed specifically for conservation purposes, including but not limited to State Wildlife Management Areas, 
State Parks, federal Wildlife Refuges and Waterfowl Production Areas. For purposes of this regulation, public 
conservation lands will also include lands owned in fee title by non-profit conservation organizations, Public 
conservation lands will also include private lands upon which conservation easements have been sold to public 
agencies or non-profit conservation organizations. 
 (I) Rotor Diameter shall mean the diameter of the circle described by the moving rotor blades. 
 (J) Small Wind Energy Conversion System (SWECS) shall mean a wind energy conversion system 
consisting of a wind turbine, a tower, and associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated capacity 
not less than 5 kW and not more than 100 kW or has a rated capacity of not more than 5 kW and a rotor diameter of 
greater than 7 feet and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power. 
 (K) Substations  shall mean any electrical facility to convert electricity produced by wind turbines to a 
higher or lower voltage for interconnection with transmission lines. 
 (L)  Total Height shall mean the highest point, above ground level, reached by a rotor tip or any other 
part of the Wind Energy Conversion System. 
 (M) Tower shall mean the vertical structures, including the foundation that supports the electrical 
generator, rotor blades, or meteorological equipment. 
 (N) Tower Height (Ground Mounted) shall mean the total height of the Wind Energy Conversion 
System, between the ground level at the base of the tower and the top of the tower, exclusive of the rotor blades. 
 (O) Tower Height (Roof Mounted) shall mean the total height of the Wind Energy Conversion 
System, between the roof level at the base of the tower and the top of the tower, exclusive of the rotor blades. 
 (P) Transmission Line  shall mean the electrical power lines that carry voltages of at least 69,000 
volts (69 KV) and are primarily used to carry electric energy over medium to long distances rather than directly 
interconnecting and supplying electric energy to retail customers. 
 (Q) Wind Energy Conversion System (WECS) shall mean an electrical generating facility 
compris ed of one or more wind turbines and accessory facilities, including but not limited to: power lines, 
transformers, substations and meteorological towers that operate by converting the kinetic energy of wind into 
electrical energy, which may be used on-site or distributed into the electrical grid. 
 (R) Wind Turbines  shall mean any piece of electrical generating equipment that converts the kinetic 
energy of blowing wind into electrical energy using airfoils or similar devices to capture the wind. 

(S) Vertical Axis Wind Turbine: A wind energy conversion system design where the rotating shaft 
is perpendicular to the ground and the cups or blades rotate parallel to the ground. 
 
 
(2) Micro Wind Energy Conversion Systems  
 
Purpose 
It is the purpose of this wind energy regulation to; promote the safe, effective and efficient use of wind energy and 
to encourage the development of residential scale generation systems as they become affordable as determined by 
the residents of Grand Island and Hall County.  
Requirements 
Residential wind energy conversion systems shall be permitted as an Accessory Use within any zoning district. 
Certain requirements as set forth below shall be met: 
 (A) Tower Height 
  (1) Shall be limited by the size of the property.  Tower height shall not exceed the fall zone 
for the property. 
 (B)  Minimum Lot Size 
  (1) Towers shall be permitted on all lots or parcels with a permitted principal use. 
 (C) Fall Zone 
  (1) Fall Zone is the total height and any underlying setbacks for ground mounted MWCES. 
  (2) Fall Zone is the 125% of the tower height and any underlying setbacks for roof mounted 
MWCES.  
 (D) Setbacks 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9261 (Cont.) 
 

- 3 - 
 

  (1) No part of the wind system structure, including guy-wire anchors, may extend closer than 
10 feet to the property lines of the installation site; tower must meet required underlying setbacks. 
 (E) Noise 
  (1)\MWCES shall not exceed 60 dBA, as measured at the closet neighboring inhabited dwelling 
unit. 
  (2) The noise level may be exceeded during short term events such as utility outages and/or 
severe wind storms, wind speeds of greater than 50 miles per hour.  
 (F)  Approved Wind Turbines  
  (1) MWCES must have been approved under the Emerging Technologies program of the 
California Energy Commission or any other small certification program recognized by the American Wind Energy 
Association. 
 (G)  Compliance with Building and Zoning Codes 
  (1) Applications for MWCES shall be accomplished by standard drawings of the wind 
turbine structure, including the tower base, and footings. 
  (2) An engineering analysis of the tower showing compliance with official building code of 
the governing body and/or the State of Nebraska and certified by a licensed professional engineer shall also be 
submitted. 
 (H)  Compliance with FAA Regulations 
  (1) MWCES must comp ly with applicable FAA regulations, including any necessary 
approvals for installations within the airport approach zone. 
  (2) No MWCES shall be installed within the regulated airport approach zone until evidence 
has been given that the Central Nebraska Regional Airport has been informed of the applicant’s intent to install a 
MWECS. A copy of a certified letter (with mailing receipt) to the Central Nebraska Regional Airport informing 
them of the owners’ intent to install the MWCES must be submitted with the building permit application. 
 (I)  Compliance with National Electrical Code  
  (1) Permit applications for small wind energy systems shall be accompanied by a line 
drawing of the electrical components in sufficient detail to allow for a determination that the manner of installation 
conforms to the National Electrical Code and the National Electric Safety Code. 
 (J) Utility Notification 
  (1) No small wind energy system shall be installed until evidence has been given that the 
utility company has been informed of the customer’s intent to install an interconnected customer-owned generator. 
  (2) Off- grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement. 
Setbacks 
Minimum setbacks from all property lines shall be equal to the Fall Zone as defining in C above.  
 
 
(3) Small Wind Energy Conversion Systems  
 
Purpose 
It is the purpose of this regulation to promote the safe, effective and efficient use of small wind energy systems 
installed to reduce the on-site consumption of utility supplied electricity. 
Requirements 
Small wind energy conversion systems shall be permitted as an Accessory Use within any district. Certain 
requirements as set forth below shall be met: 
 (A) Tower Height 
  (1) Shall be limited by the size of the property.  Tower height shall not exceed the fall zone 
for the property. 
 (B)  Minimum Lot Size 
  ((1) Towers shall be permitted on all lots or parcels with a permitted principal use. 
 (C) Fall Zone 
  (1) Fall Zone is the total height and any underlying setbacks for ground mounted SWCES. 
  (2) Fall Zone is the 150% of the tower height and any underlying setbacks for roof mounted 
SWCES. 
 (D) Setbacks 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9261 (Cont.) 
 

- 4 - 
 

  (1) No part of the wind system structure, including guy-wire anchors, may extend closer than 
10 feet to the property lines of the installation site; tower must meet required underlying setbacks. 
 (E) Noise 
  (1) SWCES shall not exceed 60 dBA, as measured at the closet neighboring inhabited 
dwelling unit. 
  (2) The noise level may be exceeded during short term events such as utility outages and/or 
severe wind storms, wind speeds of greater than 50 miles per hour.  
 (F)  Approved Wind Turbines  
  (1) SWCES must have been approved under the Emerging Technologies program of the 
California Energy Commission or any other small certification program recognized by the American Wind Energy 
Association. 
 (G)  Compliance with Building and Zoning Codes 
  (1) Applications for SWCES shall be accomplished by standard drawings of the wind turbine 
structure, including the tower base, and footings. 
  (2) An engineering analysis of the tower showing compliance with official building code of 
the governing body and/or the State of Nebraska and certified by a licensed professional engineer shall also be 
submitted. 
 (H)  Compliance with FAA Regulations 
  (1) Small wind energy conversion systems must comply with applicable FAA regulations, 
including any necessary approvals for installations within the airport approach zones. 
  (2) No SWCES shall be installed within the regulated airport approach zone until evidence 
has been given that the Central Nebraska Regional Airport has been informed of the applicant’s intent to install a 
SWECS. A copy of a certified letter (with mailing receipt) to the Central Nebraska Regional Airport informing them 
of the owners’ intent to install the SWCES must be submitted with the building permit application. 
 
 (I)  Compliance with National Electrical Code  
  (1) Permit applications for small wind energy systems shall be accompanied by a line 
drawing of the electrical components in sufficient detail to allow for a determination that the manner of installation 
conforms to the National Electrical Code and the National Electric Safety Code. 
 (J) Utility Notification 
  (1) No small wind energy system shall be installed until evidence has been given that the 
utility comp any has been informed of the customer’s intent to install an interconnected customer-owned generator. 
  (2) Off- grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement. 
Setbacks 
Minimum setbacks from all property lines shall be equal to the Fall Zone as defining in C above.  
 
(4) Commercial/Utility Grade Wind Energy Conversion Systems  
Purpose 
It is the purpose of this regulation to promote the safe, effective and efficient use of commercial/utility grade wind 
energy conversion systems within the City of Grand Island and its Extraterritorial Zoning Jurisdiction. 
 
Requirements 
Commercial/Utility Grade wind energy systems shall be a Conditional Use within the AG-2 Secondary Agricultural 
District, the TA Transitional Agriculture District, the AG-SI Special Agriculture/Industrial Zone, AG-SE Special 
Agriculture District/Events Zone, and the AG-SC Special Agriculture District/Conservation Zone. The following 
requirements and information shall be met and supplied: 
 (A) The name(s) of project applicant. 
 (B)   The name of the project owner.  
 (C)   The legal description and address of the project. 
 (D) A description of the project including: Number, type, name plate generating capacity, tower 
height, rotor diameter, and total height of all wind turbines and means of interconnecting with the electrical grid. 
 (E)  Site layout, including the location of property lines, wind turbines, feeder lines, and all related 
accessory structures. This site layout shall include distances and be drawn to scale. 
 (F) Certification by an Engineer competent in disciplines of WEC’s. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9261 (Cont.) 
 

- 5 - 
 

 (G) Documentation of land ownership or legal control of the property. 
 (H) The latitude and longitude of individual wind turbines; included with this shall be an area or zone 
in close proximity that meets all setbacks; where actual WEC will be considered. 
 (I) A USGS topographical map, or map with similar data, of the property and surrounding area, 
including any other Wind Energy Conversion System, within 10 rotor distances of the proposed Wind Energy 
Conversion System not owned by the applicant. 
 (J) Location of migratory waterfowl flyways, wetlands, scenic, and natural areas within 1,320 feet of 
the proposed Wind Energy Conversion System.  
 (K) An Acoustical Analysis that certifies that the noise requirements within this regulation can be met 
 (L)  The applicant shall supply the emergency management agency and/or fire departments with a 
basic emergency response plan. 
 (M) FAA and FCC permit, if necessary. 

(1) Commercial/Utility Grade wind energy conversion systems must comply with applicable FAA 
regulations, including any necessary approvals for installations within the airport zone. 
(2) No WEC shall be installed within the regulated airport approach zone until evidence has been 
given that the Central Nebraska Regional Airport has been informed of the applicant’s intent to install a 
SWECS. A copy of a certified letter (with mailing receipt) to the Central Nebraska Regional Airport 
informing them of the owners intent to install the SWCES must be submitted with the building permit 
application.  

 (N) Evidence that there will be no inference with any commercial and/or public safety communication 
towers. 
 (O) Decommissioning Plan as required by this regulation. 
 
Setbacks 
All towers shall adhere to the setbacks established in the following table: 
 Wind Turbine- 

Commercial/Utility WECS 
Meteorological Towers 

Property Lines 150 feet from property lines; however, the 
setback may be less when two adjoining 
property owners are within the 
aggregate project. 

One times the tower height. 

Neighboring Dwelling Units 1,000 feet One times the tower height. 
Road Rights-of-Way* One-half the rotor diameter. One times the tower height. 
Other Rights-of-Way NA NA 
Wildlife Management Areas 
and State Recreational Areas 

600 feet 600 feet 

Wetlands, USFW Types III, 
IV, and V 

600 feet 600 feet 

Other structures and 
cemeteries adjacent to the 
applicant's sites 

One-half the rotor diameter. One times the tower height. 

Other existing WECS not 
owned by the applicant. 

NA NA 

* The setback shall be measured from any future Rights-of-Way if a planned change or expanded Right-of-Way is 
known. 
 
(5) Special Safety and Design Standards  
All towers shall adhere to the following safety and design standards: 
 (A) Clearance of rotor blades or airfoils must maintain a minimum of 12 feet of clearance between 
their lowest point and the ground. 
 (B) All Commercial/Utility WECS shall have a sign or signs posted on the tower, transformer and 
substation, warning of high voltage. Other signs shall be posted on the tower base or perimeter fencing with 
emergency contact information. 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9261 (Cont.) 
 

- 6 - 
 

 (C) All wind turbines, which are a part of a commercial/utility WECS, shall be installed with a 
tubular, monopole type tower. 
 (D) Consideration shall be given to painted aviation warnings on all towers less than 200 feet. 
 (E)  Color and finish: 
  All wind turbines and towers that are part of a commercial/utility WECS shall be white, grey, or 
another non-obtrusive color. Blades may be black in order to facilitate deicing. Finishes shall be matte or non-
reflective. 
 (F) Lighting: 
  Lighting, including lighting intensity and frequency of strobe, shall adhere to but not exceed 
requirements established by the FAA permits and regulations. Red strobe lights shall be used during nighttime 
illumination to reduce impacts on neighboring uses and migratory birds. Red pulsating incandescent lights should be 
avoided. 
 (G)   Other signage: 
          All other signage shall comply with the sign regulations found in the City Code. 
 (H)   Feeder Lines: 
          All communications and connector lines associated with the project distribution system installed 
as part of a WECS shall be buried. Where obstacles to the buried lines create a need to go above ground, these lines 
may be placed above ground only to miss the obstacle. 
 (I)  Waste Disposal: 
  Solid and Hazardous wastes, including but not limited to crates, packaging materials, damaged or 
worn parts, as well as used oils and lubricants, shall be removed from the site promptly and disposed of in 
accordance with all applicable local, state and federal regulations. 
 (J) Discontinuation and Decommissioning: 
        A WECS shall be considered a discontinued use after one year without energy production, unless 
a plan is developed and submitted to the Zoning Administrator outlining the steps and schedule for returning the 
WECS to service. All WECS and accessory facilities shall be completely removed to twelve feet below ground level 
within 180 days of the discontinuation of use. The 180 days may be extended if proof of weather delays is provided. 
        Each Commercial/Utility WECS shall have a Decommissioning plan outlining the anticipated 
means and cost of removing WECS at the end of their serviceable life or upon use being discontinued. The cost 
estimates shall be made by a competent party; such as a Professional Engineer, a contractor capable of 
decommissioning or a person with suitable expertise or experience with decommissioning. The plan shall also 
identify the financial resources that will be available to pay for decommissioning and removal of the WECS and 
accessory facilities. The initial plan shall be submitted with the application. An updated plan shall be filed with the 
City every 5 years. 
 (K)   Noise: 
          No Commercial/Utility WECS shall exceed 50 dBA at the nearest structure or use occupied by 
humans. 
 (L)   Interference: 
         The applicant shall not cause interference with power quality of area utility feeder circuits and 
shall not introduce noise to the connected electric distribution system.  WECS shall not cause interference with any 
commercial or public safety electromagnetic communications, such as radio, telephone, microwaves, or television 
signals. The applicant shall notify all electric utilities and communication tower operators within five miles of the 
proposed WECS location upon application for permits. 
 (M)   Environmental Permits: 
          The developer shall present evidence the project meets the environmental permitting requirements 
of all applicable state and federal agencies if such permits are required. 
 (N)   Drainage System:  
          The applicant shall be responsible for immediate repair of damage to public drainage systems 
stemming from construction, operation or maintenance of the WECS. 

Amended by Ordinance No. 9210, effective 04-08-2009 
Amended by Ordinance No. 9261, effective 06-2010 



 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  9261 (Cont.) 
 

- 7 - 
 

 SECTION 2.  That this ordinance shall be in force and take effect from and after 

its passage and publication in pamphlet form within 15 days according to law. 

 Enacted:  May 25, 2010. 

 
   ____________________________________ 
   Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G1
Approving Minutes of May 11, 2010 City Council Regular Meeting
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA 
 

MINUTES OF CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
May 11, 2010 

 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Grand 
Island, Nebraska was conducted in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 100 East First Street, on May 
11, 2010. Notice of the meeting was given in The Grand Island Independent on May 5, 2010. 
 
Mayor Hornady called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The following City Councilmember’s were 
present: Meyer, Niemann, Carney, Dugan, Ramsey, Nickerson, Zapata , and Gericke. 
Councilmember’s Gilbert, Haase and City Administrator Jeff Pederson were absent. The following 
City Officials were present: City Clerk RaNae Edwards , City Attorney Dale Shotkoski, Finance 
Director Mary Lou Brown, and Public Works Director Steve Riehle . 
 
INVOCATION was given by Mayor Hornady followed by the PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
MAYOR COMMUNICATION: Mayor Hornady introduced CYC member Garrett Coble. Also 
mentioned was Election Day (today) - polls open until 8:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Public Hearing on Text Amendment to Chapter 36-103 of the Grand Island City Code Relative to 
Wind Energy Systems. Chad Nabity, Regional Planning Director reported that changes to the Grand 
Island City Code Chapter 36-103 were being proposed to repeal the existing regulations and replace 
them with updated regulations including micro, small and commercial wind energy conversion 
systems and regulations to allow all three sizes under differing circumstances. Staff recommended 
approval. Jason Falldorf, 319 West Stolley Park Road spoke in support. Paul Wieck, 936 W. Kimball 
commented on lot size relative to size of wind turbines. No further public testimony was heard.  
 
ORDINANCES: 
 
Councilmember Dugan moved “that the statutory rules requiring ordinances to be read by title on 
three different days are suspended and that ordinances numbered: 
 
 #9261 – Consideration of Text Amendment to Chapter 36-103 of the Grand Island City Code 

Relative to Wind Energy Systems  
 
be considered for passage on the same day upon reading by number only and that the City Clerk be 
permitted to call out the number of this ordinance on first reading and then upon final passage and 
call for a roll call vote on each reading and then upon final passage.” Councilmember Carney second 
the motion. Upon roll call vote, Councilmember’s Meyer, Niemann, Carney, Dugan, Ramsey, 
Zapata, and Nickerson voted aye. Councilmember Gericke voted no. Motion failed. 
 
 #9261 – Consideration of Text Amendment to Chapter 36-103 of the Grand Island City Code 

Relative to Wind Energy Systems (First Reading)  
 
This item related to the aforementioned Public Hearing. Discussion was held regarding the Utilities 
Department purchasing power back from the wind generators, lot size, aesthetics, set backs, noise, 
height regulations, safety issues, and wild life issues. 
 



Page 2, City Council Regular Meeting, May 11, 2010 
 
 
 

Motion by Ramsey, second by Carney to approve Ordinance #9261. Upon roll call vote, 
Councilmember’s Meyer, Carney, Dugan, Ramsey, Zapata, and Gericke voted aye. Councilmember’s 
Niemann and Nickerson voted no. Motion adopted.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:. Motion by Zapata, second by Ramsey to approve the Consent Agenda. Upon 
roll call vote, all voted aye. Motion adopted.  
 
Receipt of Official Documents – Tort Claim filed by Sandra, William, and Gregory Royle. 
 
Approving Minutes of April 27, 2010 City Council Regular Meeting.  
 
Approving Minutes of May 4, 2010 City Council Special Meeting. 
 
Approving Re-Appointments of Karen Bredthauer, Ray Aguilar, and Scott Ericksen to the 
Interjurisdictional Planning Commission.  
 
Approving Re-Appointment of John Schultz to the Civil Service Commission.  
 
#2010-125 – Approving Certificate of Final Completion with Chief Construction, Inc. of Grand 
Island, Nebraska for the Grand Generation Center Kitchen Addition and Renovation Project. 
 
#2010-126 – Approving Chang Order #1 for Primary Clarifier Mechanisms at the Waste Water 
Treatment Plant with Oakview Construction, Inc. of Red Oak, Iowa for an Increase of $17,515.00 
and a Revised Contract Amount of $620,205.00.  
 
#2010-127 – Approving Change Order #4 for Capital Avenue Widening, Street Improvement District 
#1256 with The Diamond Engineering Company of Grand Island, Nebraska for an Increase of 
$43,019.00 and a Revised Contract Amount of $3,946,974.74.  
 
#2010-128 – Approving Bid Award for the 2010 Asphalt Resurfacing Project #2010-AC-1 with Gary 
Smith Construction Co., Inc. of Grand Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $804,818.68.  
 
#2010-129 – Approving Supplemental Agreement #2 with NDOR for Repairs to a Portion of US 
Highway 34/US Highway 281. 
 
#2010-130 – Approving Bid Award for Smoke Detectors and Batteries with Menards of Grand 
Island, Nebraska in an Amount of $83,437.50.  
 
#2010-131 – Approving Bid Award for (3) Cardiac Monitors with Foremost Equipment of 
Rochester, New York in an Amount of $29,325.00 after trade-in. 
 
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS: 
 
Motion by Dugan, second by Carney to approve the Claims for the period of April 28, 2010 through 
May 11, 2010, for a total amount of $3,336,098.95. Unanimously approved.  
 
Motion by Dugan, second by Carney to approve the Claims for the Period of April 28, 2010 through 
May 11, 2010 for the Veterans Athletic Field Complex for a total amount of $26,842.50. 
Unanimously approved. 
 



Page 3, City Council Regular Meeting, May 11, 2010 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m.  
 
 
 
RaNae Edwards  
City Clerk 



Item G2
Approving Re-Appointments of Karl Kostbahn and Nancy Jones 
and New Appointments of Rebecca Rosenlund and Alan Lepler to 
the Library Board
The Mayor has submitted the Re-appointments of Nancy Jones and Karl Kostbahn to the 
Library Board. These appointments would become effective July 1, 2010 upon approval by 
the City Council and would expire on June 30, 2014.

Also the Mayor has submitted the appointments of Rebecca Rosenlund and Alan Lepler to 
the Library Board to replace Michael Kneale and Sister Mary Frances Havel whose terms 
have expired. These appointments would become effective July 1, 2010 upon approval by the 
City Council and would expire on June 30, 2014.

 Approval is recommended.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mayor Hornady

City of Grand Island City Council



Item G3
#2010-132 - Approving Redevelopment Plan for Real Estate 
Located between 107 and 203 East Stolley Park Road
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-2.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Chad Nabity

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-132 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, a municipal corporation and city of the first class, 
has determined it be desirable to undertake and carry out urban redevelopment projects in areas of the City 
which are determined to be substandard and blighted and in need of redevelopment; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Nebraska Community Development Law, Chapter 18, Article 21, Nebraska 
Reissue Revised Statutes of 1997, as amended (the "Act"), prescribes the requirements and procedures for 
the planning and implementation of redevelopment projects; and 
  

WHEREAS, the City has previously declared Redevelopment Area No. 2 of the City to be 
substandard and blighted and in need of redevelopment pursuant to the Act; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Community Redevelopment Authority of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska (the 
"Authority"), has prepared a Redevelopment Plan pursuant to Section 18-2111 of the Act, and 
recommended the Redevelopment Plan to the Planning Commission of the City; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City reviewed the Redevelopment Plan pursuant to 
the Act and submitted its recommendations, to the City, pursuant to Section 18-2114 of the Act; and 
  

WHEREAS, following consideration of the recommendations of the Authority to the Planning 
Commission, the recommendations of the Planning Commission to the City, and following the public hearing 
with respect to the Redevelopment Plan, the City approved the Plan; and 
  

WHEREAS, there has been presented to the City by the Authority for approval a specific 
Redevelopment Project within the Redevelopment Plan and as authorized in the Redevelopment Plan, such 
project to be as follows: Acquire real estate at 107 and 203 E. Stolley Park Road and construct a new 17, 
500 square foot commercial retail/office building (with a possible 12,500 square foot of additional space in 
the future) along with related utility and site improvements on Lots 2 and 3 of Equestrian Meadows 
Subdivision in the City of Grand Island. All redevelopment activities will occur in Grand Island, Hall County, 
Nebraska; and 
  

WHEREAS, the City published notices of a public hearing and mailed notices as required pursuant 
to Section 18-2115 of the Act and has, on the date of the Resolution held a public hearing on the proposal 
to amend the Redevelopment Plan to include the Redevelopment Project described above. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska: 
  



- 2 - 
  

1. The Redevelopment Plan of the City approved for Redevelopment Area No. 2 in the city of Grand 
Island, Hall County, Nebraska, including the Redevelopment Project described above, is hereby 
determined to be feasible and in conformity with the general plan for the development of the City of 
Grand Island as a whole and the Redevelopment Plan, including the Redevelopment Project 
identified above, is in conformity with the legislative declarations and determinations set forth in the 
Act; and it is hereby found and determined, based on the analysis conducted by the Authority, that 
(a) the redevelopment project in the plan would not be economically feasible without the use of tax-
increment financing, (b) the redevelopment project would not occur in the community 
redevelopment area without the use of tax-increment financing, and (c) the costs and benefits of the 
redevelopment project, including costs and benefits to other affected political subdivisions, the 
economy of the community, and the demand for public and private services have been analyzed by 
the City and have been found to be in the long-term best interest of the community impacted by the 
redevelopment project.  The City acknowledges receipt of notice of intent to enter into the 
Redevelopment Contract in accordance with Section 18-2119 of the Act and of the 
recommendations of the Authority and the Planning Commission with respect to the Redevelopment 
Contract. 

  
2. Approval of the Redevelopment Plan is hereby ratified and reaffirmed, as amended by this 

Resolution, and the Authority is hereby directed to implement the Redevelopment Plan in 
accordance with the Act. 

  
3. Pursuant to Section 18-2147 of the Act, ad valorem taxes levied upon real property in the 

Redevelopment Project included or authorized in the Plan which is described above shall be 
divided, for a period not to exceed 15 years after the effective date of this provision, which effective 
date shall be January 1, 2011 as follows: 

  
a. That proportion of the ad valorem tax which is produced by levy at the rate fixed each year 

by or for each public body upon the Redevelopment Project Valuation (as defined in the 
Act) shall be paid into the funds of each such public body in the same proportion as all 
other taxes collected by or for the bodies; and 

  
b. That proportion of the ad valorem tax on real property in the Redevelopment Project in 

excess of such amount, if any, shall be allocated to, is pledged to, and, when collected, paid 
into a special fund of the Authority to pay the principal of, the interest on, and any 
premiums due in connection with the bonds, loans, notes or advances of money to, or 
indebtedness incurred by, whether funded, refunded, assumed, or otherwise, such 
Authority for financing or refinancing, in whole or in part, such Redevelopment Project.  
When such bonds, loans, notes, advances of money, or indebtedness, including interest and 
premium due have been paid, the Authority shall so notify the County Assessor and County 
Treasurer and all ad valorem taxes upon real property in such Redevelopment Project shall 
be paid into the funds of the respective public bodies. 

  



- 3 - 
  

c. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to execute and file with the 
Treasurer and Assessor of Hall County, Nebraska, an Allocation Agreement and Notice of 
Pledge of Taxes with respect to each Redevelopment Project. 

  
4. The City hereby finds and determines that the proposed land uses and building requirements in the 

Redevelopment Area are designed with the general purposes of accomplishing, in accordance with 
the general plan for development of the City, a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development 
of the City and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, promote health, 
safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity; and the general welfare, as well as efficiency and 
economy in the process of development; including, among other things, adequate provision for 
traffic, vehicular parking, the promotion of safety from fire, panic, and other dangers, adequate 
provision for light and air, the promotion of a healthful and convenient distribution of population, the 
provision of adequate transportation, water, sewerage, and other public utilities, schools, parks, 
recreation and community facilities, and other public requirements, the promotion of sound design 
and arrangement, the wise and efficient expenditure of public funds, and the prevention of the 
recurrence of unsanitary or unsafe dwelling accommodations, or conditions of blight. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 
 



Item G4
#2010-133 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 3311 
Firestone Street  (Lot 4, Block 1, Fairway Crossings at Indianhead 
Golf Club 1st Subdivision) - Indianhead Golf Club
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-3.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-133 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  
Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, 
remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and transformers; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 25, 2010, for the purpose of discussing the 
proposed acquisition of an easement located in the City of Grand, Hall County, Nebraska; and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

The northerly ten (10.0) feet of Lot Four (4), Block One (1), Fairway Crossings at Indianhead 
Golf Club First Subdivision.  

The above-described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 0.032 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated 5/5/2010, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., on the above-described 
tract of  land. 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G5
#2010-134 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 3303 
Firestone Street  (Lot 5 , Block 1, Fairway Crossings at Indianhead 
Golf Club 1st Subdivision) - Indianhead Golf Club
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-3.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-134 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  
Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, 
remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and transformers; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 25, 2010, for the purpose of discussing the 
proposed acquisition of an easement located in the City of Grand, Hall County, Nebraska; and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

The southerly ten (10.0) feet of Lot Five (5), Block One (1), Fairway Crossings at Indianhead 
Golf Club First Subdivision.  

The above-described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 0.032 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated 5/5/2010, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., on the above-described 
tract of  land. 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G6
#2010-135 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - 4100 West 
Husker Hwy. (Part of Section 26-11-10) - Indianhead Golf Club
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-3.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-135 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  
Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., to survey, construct, inspect, maintain, repair, replace, relocate, extend, 
remove, and operate thereon,  public utilities and appurtenances, including lines and transformers; and;  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 25, 2010, for the purpose of discussing the 
proposed acquisition of an easement located in the City of Grand, Hall County, Nebraska; and more 
particularly described as follows: 
 

Commencing at the southeast corner of Lot Four (4), Block One (1), Fairway Crossings at 
Indianhead Golf Club First Subdivision; thence along the westerly line of said Lot Four (4) on 
an assumed bearing of N00°59’46”W, a distance of one hundred fifteen and ninety eight 
hundredths (115.98) feet to the northeast corner of said Lot Four (4), being the ACTUAL 
Point of Beginning; thence S57°31’53”E, a distance of two hundred forty one and sixty five 
hundredths (241.65) feet to a point on the westerly line of Lot One (1), Indianhead Fourth 
Subdivision, said point also being the northeast corner of the Schroeder Avenue right-of-way 
line.  The side lines of the above described easement tract shall be prolonged or shortened as 
required to terminate on the boundary of Grantor’s property.  

The above-described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 0.109 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated 5/5/2010, marked Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire a public utility easement from Indianhead Golf Club, Inc., on the above-described 
tract of  land. 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G7
#2010-136 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - between 
Airport Road & Abbott Road, and between North Road & Webb 
Road - Max and Lizbeth Mader
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-4.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-136 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  Max 
and Lizbeth Mader to install, upgrade, maintain and repair, a 115 kV electric transmission line to the 
northwest of the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 25, 2010, for the purpose of discussing the 
proposed acquisition of an easement located in Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly described as 
follows: 
 

The westerly twenty-five (25) feet of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (NW 
¼ SE ¼) of Section Thirty-six (36), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Ten (10) West 
of the 6th P.M. Hall County, Nebraska. 
 
The above described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 0.76 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated November 9, 2009, marked Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire public utility easements from Max and Lizabeth Mader, on the above-described tracts 
of  land. 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May, 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G8
#2010-137 - Approving Acquisition of Utility Easement - between 
White Cloud Road & Abbott Road, and between North Road & 
Engleman Road - Lloyd and Patricia Mader
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-5.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-137 
 
 
 WHEREAS, a public utility easement is required by the City of Grand Island, from  Lloyd 
and Patricia Mader to install, upgrade, maintain and repair, a 115 kV electric transmission line to the 
northwest of the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 25, 2010, for the purpose of discussing the 
proposed acquisition of an easement located in Hall County, Nebraska; and more particularly described as 
follows: 
 

The westerly twenty-five (25) feet of the Northeast Quarter  (NE ¼) of Section Twenty-six 
(26), Township Twelve (12) North, Range Ten (10) West of the 6th P.M. Hall County, 
Nebraska. 
 
The above described easement and right-of-way containing a total of 1.52 acres, more or 
less, as shown on the plat dated November 9, 2009, marked Exhibit “A”, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island be, and hereby is, 
authorized to acquire public utility easements from Lloyd and Patricia Mader, on the above-described tracts 
of  land. 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May, 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 





Item G9
#2010-138 - Approving Amendment #1 to the Consent to Access for 
EPA Environmental Response Action Agreement
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 

Steven Riehle, Public Works Director 
   Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Amendment #1 to the Consent to Access for EPA 

Environmental Response Action Agreement 
 
Item #’s:  G-9 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 
As a part of the EPA program for remediation of the Parkview Superfund site 
groundwater contamination, the City entered into an agreement with EPA to allow 
utilization of City Right-of-Way for the installation of several of the components of the 
remediation system and the installation groundwater monitoring wells that will be used to 
measure the effectiveness of the system once it goes into service next month.  
 

Discussion 
 

As time has passed during the construction of the remediation system, the groundwater 
contamination plume has continued to move in the aquifer, generally in a northeasterly 
direction across the Parkview Subdivision and into the Hagges’ and Country Club 
Subdivisions to the east of Parkview. EPA wishes to install additional groundwater 
monitoring wells in the City Right-of-Way in the area of the leading edge of the 
contamination plume.  It is proposed that the original agreement with EPA be amended to 
allow the additional monitoring wells to be installed. Attached is proposed Amendment 
#1 to the CONSENT TO ACCESS FOR EPA ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE 
ACTION (“AGREEMENT”) and a copy of the original agreement. 
 

Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.   
 



The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve Amendment #1 to the 
CONSENT TO ACCESS FOR EPA ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE ACTION 
(“AGREEMENT”). 
 

Sample Motion 
 

Move to approve Amendment #1 to the CONSENT TO ACCESS FOR EPA 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE ACTION (“AGREEMENT”). 













 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-138 
 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 14, 2009 the City entered into an agreement with EPA to allow 
utilization of City Right-of-Way for the installation of several of the components of the remediation system 
and the installation groundwater monitoring wells to be used to measure the effectiveness of the remediation 
system; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as time has passed the groundwater contamination plume has continued to 
move in the aquifer; and 
 
 WHEREAS, EPA wishes to install additional groundwater monitoring wells in the City 
Right-of-Way in the area of the leading edge of the contamination plume; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an Amendment to original CONSENT TO ACCESS FOR EPA 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE ACTION (“AGREEMENT”) is recommended to allow the additional 
monitoring wells. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that Amendment #1 to the CONSENT TO ACCESS 
FOR EPA ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE ACTION (“AGREEMENT”), is hereby approved. 

 
 - - - 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G10
#2010-139 - Approving Bid Award for Substation Power 
Transformers
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From: Gary Mader, Utilities Director 
 Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Substation Power Transformers, Contract #10-PCC-02  
 
Item #’s:  G-10 
 
Presenter(s): Gary Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background  
 

In 2006, Advantage Engineering (AE) was contracted to perform a Transmission and 
Substation System Study for the City of Grand Island Utilities Department (GIUD). Various 
alternatives and solutions were analyzed for the logical and economic expansion of the City’s 
115 kV transmission loop, power interconnections with Nebraska Public Power District 
(NPPD), substations, distribution, and communications. The system study period was ten 
(10) years (2006-2016) taking into account projected City expansion and load growth. When 
fully implemented, the major substation and transmission requirements should be satisfied 
through 2027.  
 
The Transmission and Substation System Study was completed in 2007 and contained a 
detailed analysis of previous studies and reports; surrounding area power provider plans; 
State wide planned improvements; Contractual obligations; the City’s comprehensive 
development plans; system capabilities and capacities; land use issues; and schedule related 
items. The study resulted in recommendations to expand the 115 kV transmission system to 
serve load growth and assure reliability. The results of the Transmission and Substation 
System Study were presented to the Grand Island City Council on January 8, 2008.  
 
One of the system improvements identifie d in the Transmission and Substation System Study 
was the need for an additional distribution substation to be located in the southern portion of 
the city near the industrial park and I-80 and South Locust corridors. A location for this new 
substation has been identified and the design process has begun.  Circuit breakers have been 
purchased and initial site testing completed. Due to the long lead time and significant cost, 
the project is planned for completion over several years in stages. In the current budget, funds 
are included for purchase of the Substation Power Transformers. 



Discussion 
 

The design engineer prepared specifications for the purchase of the power transformers. 
Those specifications were published and advertised in accordance with the City Procurement 
Code. Additionally, specifications were sent to eight regional distributors. Bids were publicly 
opened at 2:00 p.m. on May 10, 2010. Listed below is a tabulation of the bids received: 

 
Bidder Exceptions Bid Price 

Delta Star, Inc. Noted $1,467,772.50 
CG Power Systems, Inc. Noted $1,499,518.33 
Siemens Energy, Inc. Noted $1,533,096.00 
WEG Electric Corp.  Noted $1,577,389.72 
ABB, Inc. Noted $1,615,320.00 
Waukesha Electric Systems  Noted $1,619,029.84 

 
All prices have been adjusted to include sales tax, assembly, installation and testing.  
 
The bids were evaluated by utility engineering staff in consultation with the consulting 
engineer. The lowest bid submitted was for two (2) Delta Star Transformers at a total cost of 
$1,467,772.50. Several references were contacted during review of the bid. All references 
indicated a positive experience. Exceptions noted were primarily clarifications with no 
significant deviations from the specifications. All six bids are evaluated as compliant with the 
specifications.  The engineers estimate for the power transformers was $2,000,000. 
 

Alternatives 
 

It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  The 
Council may: 
 
 1.  Move to approve  
 2.  Refer the issue to a Committee 
 3.  Postpone the issue to a future date  
 4.  Take no action on the issue  
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the purchase of two (2) 
22.5/30/37.5 MVA 115 kV Substation Power Transformers for $1,467,772.50 from Delta 
Star, Inc. c/o Energy Solutions. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to purchase the recommended Substation Power Transformers for a total of 
$1,467,772.50.  



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Dale Shotkoski, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  May 10, 2010 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
FOR:     Substation Power Transformers, Contract #10-PCC-02 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Utilities 
 
ESTIMATE:    $2,000,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   520 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  April 14, 2010 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 8 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  ABB, Inc.     WEG Electric Corp. 
   South Boston, VA    Duluth, GA 
Bid Security:  Liberty Mutual Ins. Co.   The Ins. Co. of the State of Pennsylvania 
Exceptions:  Noted      Noted 
 
Bid Price:  $1,615,320.00     $1,577,389.72 
 
 
Bidder:  Waukesha Electric Systems   CG Power Systems 
   Goldsboro, NC    Washington, MO 
Bid Security:  Liberty Mutual Ins. Co.   Employers Mutual Casualty Co. 
Exceptions:  Noted      Noted 
 
Bid Price:  $770,970.00 each    $1,499,518.33 
 
 
Bidder:  Siemens Energy, Inc.   Delta Star, Inc. 
   Wendell, NC     San Carlos, CA 
Bid Security:  Federal Insurance Co.   Platte River Ins. Co. 
Exceptions:  Noted      None 
 
Bid Price:  $1,533,096.00     $1,384,312.50 



 
              P1409 



 Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 

May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney 

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-139 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2006 Advantage Engineering (AE) was contracted to perform a Transmission and 
Substation System Study for the City of Grand Island Utilities Department (GIUD), and various alternatives were 
analyzed for expansion of the City’s 115 kV transmission loop, interconnections with Nebraska Public Power 
District (NPPD), substations, distribution and communications; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the study was completed in 2007 and resulted in recommendations to expand the 
115 kV transmission system to serve load growth and assure reliability; and 
 
 WHEREAS, one of the system improvements identified was the need for an additional distribution 
substation to be located in the southern portion of the City near the Industrial Park and I-80 and South Locust 
corridors; and 
  
 WHEREAS, specifications and bid documents were prepared for Substation Power 
Transformers; and   
 
 WHEREAS, specifications for Substation Power Transformers were advertised for bids in 
accordance with City Procurement Codes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 10, 2010, bids were received, publically opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Delta Star, Inc., of San Carlos, California, submitted a bid in accordance with the 
terms of the advertisement of bids and plans and specifications and all other statutory requirements contained 
therein, such bid being in the amount of $1,467,772.50; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the bid of Delta Star, Inc., of San Carlos, California, is less than the estimate for 
Substation Power Transformers. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of Delta Star, in the amount of $1,467,772.50 for Substation Power 
Transformers is hereby approved as the lowest responsible bid. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G11
#2010-140 - Approving Agreement with Open Access Technology, 
Inc. (OATI) Webcares for Transmission Reporting Security
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Gary R. Mader

City of Grand Island City Council



 

Council Agenda Memo 
 
 
From:  Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
   Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Open Access Technology, Inc. (OATI) Webcares 

Customer Agreement 
 
Item #’s:  G-11 
 
Presenter(s): Gary R. Mader, Utilities Director 
 
 

Background 
 
The Grand Island Electric Department, like all U.S. electric utilities, is required to meet 
various federal standards in order to maintain reliability of the national electrical grid. 
These standards are produced and maintained on a federal level but enforced on a 
regional level. The Midwest Reliability Organization (MRO) is the enforcement 
organization for the entire state of Nebraska as well as several other states in the upper 
Midwest. Critical information is passed electronically from the department to MRO at 
various times throughout the year to demonstrate compliance. MRO is currently working 
to upgrade this communication process. 
 

Discussion 
 

Until recently, all information that MRO required the Grand Island Electric Department 
to submit was accomplished via a secure website using a user ID and password. Due to 
security concerns with this method, MRO is adopting a digital certificate method of 
authenticating communications. No information will be sent to MRO without the proper 
digital certificates. Digital certificates are available from Open Access Technology, Inc. 
(OATI).  In order to obtain the necessary digital certificates from OATI, a customer 
agreement is required.  MRO has agreed to pay for the annual fees associated with the 
digital certificates therefore; Grand Island will not be responsible for any cost associated 
with this agreement. This agreement simply provides the necessary structure and contact 
information in order for OATI to issue the digital certificates. Open Access Technology’s 
agreement is considered confidential. A copy of the agreement is provided to Council 
under separate cover. 
 



 

 
Alternatives 

 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 1.  Move to approve  
 2.  Refer the issue to a Committee 
 3.  Postpone the issue to a future date 
 4.  Take no action on the issue  
 

Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the OATI Webcares Customer Agreement be 
signed to enable the Grand Island Utilities Department to continue submittal of 
compliance information to the MRO. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the OATI Webcares Customer Agreement. 



 Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 

May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney 

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-140 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grand Island Electric Department is required to meet various federal 
standards in order to maintain reliability of the national electrical grid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Midwest Reliability Organization (MRO) is the enforcement organization for 
the entire state of Nebraska; and 
 
 WHEREAS, critical information is passed electronically from the Utilities Department to 
MRO at various times throughout the year to demonstrate compliance, and MRO is currently working to 
upgrade this communication process; and  
 
 WHEREAS, MRO is adopting a digital certificate method of authenticating communications 
and no information will be sent to MRO without the proper certificates; and 
 
 WHEREAS, digital certificates are available from Open Access Technology, Inc (OATI); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to obtain the necessary digital certificates from OATI, a customer 
agreement is required, and MRO has agreed to pay for the annual fees associated with the digital certificates; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the OATI webCARES CUSTOMER AGREEMENT between Open 
Access Technology International, Inc., and the City of Grand Island is at no cost to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City to participate in this service; and 
 
 WHEAREAS, the proposed agreement has been reviewed and approved by the City 
Attorney. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the OATI webCARES CUSTOMER AGREEMENT is 
hereby approved, and the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute such agreement on behalf of the 
City of Grand Island. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 



- 2 - 
  

RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G12
#2010-141 - Approving Award of Proposal for Consulting Services 
for the Re-Permitting of the Solid Waste Landfill
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Approving Award of Proposal for Consulting Services 

for the Re-Permitting of the Solid Waste Landfill  
 
Item #’s:  G-12 
 
Presenter(s): Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director 
 
 

Background  
 

On April 23, 2010 a Request for Proposals (RFP) for consulting services for Re-
Permitting of the Solid Waste Landfill was advertised in the Grand Island Independent  
and sent to ten (10) potential proposers by the Solid Waste Division of the Public Works 
Department. 
 
Re-permitting of RCRA Sub-title D landfills is required to be completed every five (5) 
years per NDEQ Title 132 regulations. The current landfill permit expires on April 15th, 
2011. The NDEQ has requested that we start the process with a permit inspection in June 
2010 and submit the permit application to them in August 2010. 
 
The Grand Island Area Landfill currently has an estimated site life capacity through the 
year 2037 in the current permitted Phase 1 disposal area. Cell 3 of Phase I, which will be 
the next landfill expansion project, is anticipated to begin in FY 2012. The fourth and 
final cell of Phase 1 is anticipated to be constructed in FY 2023. 
 

Discussion 
 

Three (3) proposals were opened on May 6, 2010 and reviewed by Steve Riehle, Public 
Works Director; Tom Carlson, Engineering Tech Supervisor; Jeff Wattier, Solid Waste 
Superintendet; and James Swanson, Senior Equipment Operator. One (1) firm submitted 
a proposal that was significantly lower than all other proposers. That proposal included 
less scope and approach to this project. Another firm submitted a broader scope, however 
a few tasks were listed as additional services, with extra costs involved. Aquaterra 
Environmental Solutions Inc. of Omaha, Nebraska submitted the proposal in accordance 



with the required criteria listed in the RFP, with work to be performed at actual costs not 
to exceed $43,605.   
 
The estimate of costs for this work was $65,000.  Funds for the consulting services are in 
the approved 2009/2010 budget. The proposal submitted by Aquaterra was chosen by the 
selection committee based on the evaluation criteria, which was used to rank the 
proposals: 
 

• Firm & Team experience on similar work.       (20%) 
• Understanding of the project.        (20%) 
• Experience and knowledge of the City and County  

where the work is being performed.        (15%) 
• Approach.           (25%) 
• Proposed schedule and fees.        (20%) 

 
Alternatives 

 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the award of the proposal to 
AquaTerra Environmental Solutions, Inc. of Omaha, Nebraska. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve the award of the proposal.  



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Dale Shotkoski, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR 
CONSULTING SERVICES FOR RE-PERMITTING SOLID WASTE LANDFILL 

 
 
 
RFP DUE DATE:   May 6, 2010 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Public Works 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  April 23, 2010 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 10 
 
 SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
 
American Environmental Consulting    Aquaterra Environmental Solutions, Inc. 
Littleton, CO        Omaha, NE 
 
HDR, Inc.         
Omaha, NE 
 
 
 
cc: Steve Riehle, Public Works Director    Catrina Delosh, PW Admin. Assist. 

Jeff Pederson, City Administrator    Mary Lou Brown, Finance Director 
Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney    Jeff Wattier, Solid Waste Supt. 
 
 

              P1413 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-141 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Of Grand Island invited proposals for consulting services for the Re-
Permitting of the Solid Waste Landfill, according to Request Proposals on file with the Solid Waste Division 
of the Public Works Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 6, 2010 proposals were received, reviewed, and evaluated in 
accordance with established criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, AquaTerra Environmental Solutions, Inc., of Omaha, Nebraska submitted a 
proposal in accordance with the terms of the Request for Proposals and all statutory requirements contained 
therein and the City Procurement Code with the work performed at actual costs with a maximum of 
$43,605.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the proposal of AquaTerra Environmental 
Solutions, Inc. of Omaha, Nebraska for consulting services for the Re-Permitting of the Solid Waste Landfill 
is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute such agreement on behalf of the City of Grand Island. 

 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G13
#2010-142 - Approving Agreement with NDOR for Mormon Island 
Trail Bridges
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steven P. Riehle, Public Works Director

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Agreement with Nebraska Dept. of Roads for 

Construction of the Mormon Island Trail Bridges 
 
Item #’s:  G-13 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

The City Council authorized the Park and Recreation Department to apply for a grant to 
finish construction of two trail bridges over the Platte River on the west side of South 
Locust Street. We have been notified that the project has been chosen for grant funding. 
 

Discussion 
 

In order to receive the funding associated with the grant it is required by the State that a 
resolution be attached to the agreement committing the City to the requirements of the 
grant. The grant provides for a federal share not to exceed $401,724.00 with the City 
obligation not to exceed $100,431.00. The total project is not to exceed $502,155.00. 
Funds are available in the 2010 budget for this project. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue 

 



Recommendation 
 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the resolution authorizing the 
acceptance of the grant. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to approve resolution authorizing City to accept grant funds for trail construction.  



RESOLUTION 
(SIGNING OF THE PROJECT PROGRAM AGREEMENT) 

 
City of Grand Island  
Resolution No.      2010-142 

 
 WHEREAS: The City of Grand Island is proposing a transportation project for 
which it would like to obtain Federal funds; and  
 
 WHEREAS: The City of Grand Island understands that it must strictly follow all 
Federal, State and local laws, rules, regulations, policies and guidelines applicable to the 
funding of the Federal-aid project; and  
 
 WHEREAS: The City of Grand island and the Nebraska Department of Roads 
(NDOR) wish to enter into a Project Program Agreement setting out the various duties 
and funding responsibilities for the Federal-aid project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL FO THE 
CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the City of Grand Island is hereby 
authorized to sign the attached Project Program Agreement between the City of Grand 
Island and the NDOR.  
 
The City of Grand Island is committed to providing local funds for the project as required 
by the Project Program Agreement. 
 
 NDOR Project Number – ENH-40(61) 
 NDOR Control Number – 42666 
 NDOR Project Name – Mormon Island Trail Bridges 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 

The City Council of the CITY OF GRAND ISLAND 
 

Jose Zapata  Robert Niemann 
Peg Gilbert  Scott Dugan 
Kirk Ramsey  Robert Meyer 
Larry Carney  Mitch Nickerson 
Chuck Hasse  John Gericke 

 
Council Member       
Moved the adoption of said resolution 
Member     Seconded the motion 
Roll Call: Yes ____No ____Abstained ____ Absent 
Resolution adopted, signed and billed as adopted 

 
 
             

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
       

RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G14
#2010-143 - Approving Bid Award for Relocation and 
Reconstruction of Multi Purpose Building for the Veterans 
Athletic Field Complex
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Approving Bid Award for Relocation and Reconstruction 

of Multi Purpose Building for the Veterans Athletic Field 
Complex 

 
Item #’s:  G-14 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

On May 2, 2010 the Park and Recreation Department, advertised for bids for the 
Relocation and Reconstruction of a Multi Purpose Building at the Veterans Athletic 
Complex. Two firms provided bids for this work. The low bid was provided by Tri 
Valley Builders of Grand Island in the amount of $88,000.00. The other bid was provided 
by Chief Construction in the amount of $116,576.00. The Engineers estimate was 
$120,000.00 
 

Discussion 
 

Because of the relocation of the State Fair to Grand Island it is necessary to move the 
athletic complex currently located at Fonner Park to a new site. The new site is located 
just south of Eagle Scout Park. The relocation of the building is necessary to provide 
concessions, restrooms and storage for the new softball complex. Funding is available in 
account number 40044450 90122 Soccer/Bball Fields-Vets Home for this purpose. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  



 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the award of a contract to Tri 
Valley Construction in the amount of $88,000.00. 
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to award contract to Tri Valley Construction for the Relocation and Reconstruction 
of a Multi Purpose Building at the Veterans Athletic Field Complex.  



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Dale Shotkoski, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  May 18, 2010 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
FOR:     Relocation and Reconstruction of Multi Purpose Building for the 
     Veterans Athletic Field Complex 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Parks & Recreation 
 
ESTIMATE:    $120,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   40044450-90122 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  May 2, 2010 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 5 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  Chief Construction Co.   Tri Valley Builders, Inc. 
   Grand Island, NE    Grand Island, NE 
Bid Security:  Fidelity & Deposit Co.   Universal Surety Co. 
Exceptions:  Noted      Noted 
 
Bid Price:  $116,576.00     $88,000.00 
 
 
 
cc: Steve Paustian, Parks & Rec. Director   Todd McCoy, Parks & Rec. Supt. 
 Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney    Patti Buettner, Parks & Rec. Secretary 
 Jeff Pederson, City Administrator 
 
              P1416 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-143 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for Relocation and Reconstruction 
of Multi Purpose Building for the new Veterans Athletic Field Complex, according to plans and 
specifications on file with the Parks and Recreation Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 18, 2010, bids were received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tri Valley Builders, Inc from Grand Island, Nebraska, submitted a bid in 
accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids, plans and specifications and all other statutory 
requirements contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $88,000.00. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of Tri Valley Builders, Inc from Grand 
Island, Nebraska in the amount of $88,000.00 for Relocation and Reconstruction of Multi Purpose Building 
at  the new Veterans Athletic Field Complex is hereby approved as the lowest responsible bid. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item G15
#2010-144 - Approving Bid Award Installation of New Turf & 
Synthetic Court Flooring
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Approving Bid Award for Installation of New Turf and 

Synthetic Court Flooring 
 
Item #’s:  G-15 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

On March 27, 2010 the Park and Recreation Department, advertised for bids for 
Installation of New Turf and Synthetic Court Flooring at the new City Field House. Four  
firms provided bids for this work. The bid provided by Midwest Floor Covering in the 
amount of $69,894.00 was the low bid for the Synthetic Court Flooring. The bid provided 
by All Sports Enterprises in the amount of $$211,030.00 was low bid for the New Turf.   
 

Discussion 
 

In order for the City to operate the new Field House as planned, the sports flooring is 
necessary. The business plan calls for indoor soccer and various court games to be 
offered. These games need a safe and adequate surface for play. The previously 
mentioned surfaces fulfill this need.  
 
The City is bidding and awarding this contract at the request of the Nebraska State Fair in 
recognition of the fact that this building component is particular to the use of the building 
as a City-managed recreational facility. The cost will be expensed against the $5 million 
project budget. 
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 



3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
City Administration recommends that the Council approve the award of a contract to All 
Sports Enterprises in the amount of $211,030.00 for new turf and to also award a contract 
to Midwest Floor Covering in the amount of $69,894.00 for the synthetic floor covering.  
 

Sample Motion 
 
Move to award contract to All Sports Enterprises and Midwest Floor Covering for the 
installation of New Turf and Synthetic Court Flooring at the new City Field House. 



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Dale Shotkoski, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 BID OPENING 
 
BID OPENING DATE:  April 21, 2010 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
FOR:     Installation of New Turf & Synthetic Court Flooring 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Parks & Recreation 
 
ESTIMATE:    $281,000.00 
 
FUND/ACCOUNT:   Wells Fargo Escrow Account 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  March 27, 2010 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 8 
 
 SUMMARY 
 
Bidder:  Anderson Ladd    Midwest Floor Covering 
   Omaha, NE     Lincoln, NE 
Bid Security:  Berkley Regional Ins. Co.   RLI Insurance Co. 
Exceptions:  None       None  
 
Bid Price: 
Bid “A”:  $$150,990.00     No Bid 
Bid “B”:  $    68,385.00     No Bid 
Bid “C”:  $    87,091.00     $69,894.00 
 
 
Bidder:  Bulte Company    All Sports Enterprises, Inc. 
   Omaha, NE     Exton, PA 
Bid Security:  Old Republic Surety Co.   The Hanover Ins. Co. 
Exceptions:  None       None  
 
Bid Price: 
Bid “A”:  No Bid      $142,000.00 Option $7,380.00 
Bid “B”:  No Bid      $   49,900.00 Option $3,075.00 
Bid “C”:  $79,425.00     $   89,500.00 
 
 
cc: Steve Paustian, Parks & Recreation Director   Todd McCoy, Recreation Superintendent 
 Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney     Patti Buettner, Parks Secretary 
 Jeff Pederson, City Administrator 
 
              P1408 



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-144 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited sealed bids for Installation of New Turf and 
Synthetic Court Flooring for the new  City  Fieldhouse Building, according to plans and specifications on file 
with the Parks and Recreation Department; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 21, 2010, bids were received, opened and reviewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Midwest Floor Covering from Lincoln, Nebraska, submitted a bid in 
accordance with the terms of the advertisement of bids, plans and specifications and all other statutory 
requirements contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $69,894.00 for the Synthetic Court 
Flooring and All Sports Enterprises from Exton, Pennsylvania, submitted a bid in accordance with the 
terms of the advertisement of bids, plans and specifications and all other statutory requirements 
contained therein, such bid being in the amount of $211,030.00 for the New Turf . 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the bid of Midwest Floor Covering from Lincoln, 
Nebraska, in the amount of $69,894.00 for Synthetic Court Flooring and All Sports Enterprises from 
Exton, Pennsylvania, in the amount of $211,030.00 for the New Turf for the new City  Fieldhouse Building 
is hereby approved as the lowest responsible bid. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item I1
#2010-145 - Consideration of Request from Ronald King dba RK’s 
Pub, 217 E. Stolley Park Road #6 & #7 for a Change of Location to 
217 E. Stolley Park Road Suite N for Class “C-59418” Liquor 
License
This item relates to the aforementioned Public Hearing Item E-1.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: RaNae Edwards

City of Grand Island City Council



 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-145 
 
 WHEREAS, an application was filed by Ronald King doing business as RK’s Pub, 217 E. 
Stolley Park Road #6 & #7 for a change of location to 217 E. Stolley Park Road Suite N for Class "C-
59418" Liquor License; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing notice was published in the Grand Island Independent as 
required by state law on May 15, 2010; such publication cost being $17.63; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on May 25, 2010 for the purpose of discussing such 
liquor license application. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that: 
 
 ____ The City of Grand Island hereby recommends approval of the above-identified 

liquor license change of address application contingent upon final inspections. 
 
 ____ The City of Grand Island hereby makes no recommendation as to the above-

identified liquor license application. 
 
 ____ The City of Grand Island hereby makes no recommendation as to the above-

identified liquor license application with the following stipulations:  _________  
  __________________________________________________________  
 
 ____ The City of Grand Island hereby recommends denial of the above-identified liquor 

license application for the following reasons:  ________________________  
  __________________________________________________________  
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item I2
#2010-146 - Approving Lease Agreement for Management and 
Operation of the Racquet Center
 

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Steve Paustian

City of Grand Island City Council



Council Agenda Memo  
 
From:  Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Meeting:  May 25, 2010 
 
Subject: Approving Lease Agreement for Management and 

Operation of the Racquet Center 
 
Item #’s:  I-2 
 
Presenter(s): Steve Paustian, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
 

Background  
 

In 1984 the City was approached by the owners of the Grand Island Racquet Center to 
see if there was any interest by the City to purchase the Racquet Center from them. 
Negotiations took place and the City ended up purchasing the Racquet Center for the 
taxes owed, approximately, $30,000.00. 
 
The Park and Recreation Dept. Administrative offices moved to the facility after the 
purchase and remained there until moving to the new City Hall in 1993. In 1997 
proposals were solicited by the City for the operation of the Racquet Center. Scott 
Norton, owner of the Health-Plex Fitness Center was offered a contract to operate the 
Racquet Center in 1997. Mr. Norton's lease is set to terminate on May 31, 2010. 
 

Discussion 
 

During the years Mr. Norton has leased the building the floor plan has been modified to 
allow for a soccer field at the west end of the facility. With the construction of the new 
City/State Fair building it has been determined it is in the best interest of the City to not 
allow soccer to continue in the Racquet Center. At about the same time representatives of 
the Grand Island Tennis Association (GITA) approached the City about the opportunity 
to submit a proposal to manage the Racquet Center. At a Council study session held 
earlier this spring it was determined that a Request for Proposals should be developed to 
allow interested parties the opportunity to submit a proposal to operate the facility.  
 
Two proposals were received, one by Mr. Mark Galvan and the other by the Grand Island 
Tennis Association. Both proposals were reviewed by the City Administrator and the 
Parks and Recreation Director. It was the determination of staff that the proposal 



provided by the Grand Island Tennis Association best served the interest of the citizens of 
Grand Island. The Tennis Associations proposal included detailed improvements to be 
made to the facility and provide an employee currently employed at the Racquet Center 
to manage day to day operations tennis as the primary activity at the facility. Mr. 
Galvan's proposal offered an improvement plan and a possible person to operate the 
facility. His proposal also included providing batting cages and a turf area for softball and 
baseball practice. These two offerings are planned for by the City at the new Field House. 
 
Proposals were scored against the following evaluation criteria: 

• 20% Qualifications of personnel to be assigned to the management and 
operation of the facility based upon information available at the time of 
submittal. Other information requested may be requested by the City at a 
later date; 

• 10% Previous experience with facilities of similar scope and nature; 
• 25% Proposed lease terms and conditions; 
• 20% Proposed approach and scope of services; 
• 25% Ability of proposer to meet its commitment. 

 
A meeting was held with representatives of the GITA to review the proposal and discuss 
terms of a lease. This meeting resulted in the Lease Agreement that is before the City 
Council for consideration. The Lease Agreement includes a five-year lease term with a 
90-day termination clause. 
 
All building and grounds maintenance, including snow removal and mowing, resides 
with the GITA. Facilities improvements required in the Lease Agreement are contained 
in Article V.  
 

Alternatives 
 
It appears that the Council has the following alternatives concerning the issue at hand.  
The Council may: 
 

1. Move to approve  
2. Refer the issue to a Committee 
3. Postpone the issue to future date 
4. Take no action on the issue  

 
Recommendation 

 
It is the recommendation of the Director of Parks and Recreation and the City 
Administrator that the Council approve the Lease Agreement with the Grand Island 
Tennis Association.  
 

Sample Motion 
 



Move to approve the Lease Agreement with the Grand Island Tennis Association to 
operate the Racquet Center. 



Purchasing Division of Legal Department
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

             
  Dale Shotkoski, Purchasing Agent 

 
Working Together for a 

                     Better Tomorrow, Today 
 
 
 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

FOR  
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATION OF THE RACQUET CENTER  

 
 
 
RFP DUE DATE:   March 11, 2010 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
DEPARTMENT:   Parks & Recreation 
 
PUBLICATION DATE:  February 21, 2010 
 
NO. POTENTIAL BIDDERS: 2 
 
 SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS RECEIVED 
 
Grand Island Tennis Association     Mark Galvan 
Grand Island, NE       Grand Island, NE 
 
 
 
cc: Steve Paustian, Parks & Recreation Director   Patti Buettner, Parks Secretary 

Jeff Pederson, City Administrator    Mary Lou Brown, Finance Director 
Dale Shotkoski, City Attorney     
 
 

              P1402 

















 
Approved as to Form ¤ ___________ 
May 21, 2010 ¤  City Attorney  

 R E S O L U T I O N    2010-146 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grand Island Racquet Center has been operated by the City of Grand 
Island since February, 1984; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council recommended that the Racquet Center situation be reviewed 
with specified goals for the facility and that requests for proposals be solicited to accomplish those goals; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Grand Island invited proposals for Management and Operation of 
the Racquet Center; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 11, 2010, proposals were received, reviewed and evaluated  
in accordance with established criteria; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Grand Island Tennis Association in Grand Island, Nebraska, submitted a 
proposal in accordance with the terms of the request for proposal being a five-year lease with five additional 
one (1) year renewal options containing a financial commitment for annual improvements to the facility; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a Lease Agreement has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney’s 
office. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF GRAND ISLAND, NEBRASKA, that the proposal of the Grand Island Tennis 
Association for management and operation of the Racquet Center is hereby approved. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor be, and hereby is, authorized and directed 
to sign on behalf of the City of Grand Island, a Lease Agreement by and between the City and the Grand 
Island Tennis Association, for such project. 
 
 - - - 
 
Adopted by the City Council of the City of Grand Island, Nebraska, May 25, 2010. 
 
 
 
        _______________________________________ 

Margaret Hornady, Mayor 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 



- 2 - 
  

RaNae Edwards, City Clerk 



Item J1
Approving Payment of Claims for the Period of May 12, 2010 
through May 25, 2010
 The Claims for the period of May 12, 2010 through May 25, 2010 for a total amount of 
$3,656,236.61.  A MOTION is in order.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council



Item J2
Approving Payment of Claims for the Period of May 11, 2010 
through May 25, 2010 for the Veterans Athletic Field Complex
The Claims for the Veterans Athletic Field Complex for the period of April 28, 2010 through 
May 25, 2010 for the following requisitions.

#18     $117,609.70

A MOTION is in order.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council























Item J3
Approving Payment of Claims for the Period of April 28, 2010 
through May 25, 2010 for the State Fair Recreation Building
The Claims for the  Period of April 28, 2010 through May 25, 2010 for the State Fair 
Recreational Building for the following requisitions:

#18       $306,000.00

A MOTION is in order.

Tuesday, May 25, 2010
Council Session

City of Grand Island

Staff Contact: Mary Lou Brown

City of Grand Island City Council


















